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Financial Highlights

MBREE

Year ended 31 December
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Revenue g 87,328 303,233 274,386

Profit for the year IR i 360,995 473,589 43,680
Profit attributable to NEEmEEA

equity holders of the parent e 359,651 467,519 36,062

Basic earnings per share FREREF HK7.70 cents HK9.90 cents  HKO0.76 cent
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Total assets BEMAE 2,086,453 2,551,850 4,071,565
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Non-controlling interests IEIE AR R = (5,582) (4,173) (71,646)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall review

In 2011, the Group disposed of its electric and steam power
supply business by disposing 53% out of its 56% equity
interest in Zhejiang Sealand Thermoelectric Share-Holding Co.
("Zhejiang Sealand”). Details of the disposal were set out in
the circular of the Company dated 7 December 2011. Upon the
disposal, the electric and steam power supply segment became
discontinued.

In 2012, the Group recorded turnover of HK$87,328,000
(2011: HK$303,233,000 (including the discontinued operation)).
The profit attributable to equity holders dropped from
HK$467,519,000 to HK$359,651,000 which was mainly due
to the gain on disposal of Zhejiang Sealand of HK$148,489,000
recorded in 2011. Basic earnings per share amounted to
HK¢7.70 (2011: HK¢9.90).

Knitting and textile business

On 28 December 2011, the Group acquired a 51% equity
interest in LR 5 & 4 AR B BR A Fl(“Zhejiang Dongyang
Jinniu”) which is engaged in the production and distribution
of knitting and textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing
in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. As such, the knitting and textile
business segment becomes a new reportable operating segment
of the Group.

In 2012, the turnover of Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu was
HK$87,328,000 and the sales volume of knitting and textile
products for the year was approximately 3,135 tonnes. The
overall gross profit rate was 12%. The knitting and textile
business segment recorded profit of HK$2,743,000 for the year.

Aero-technology related business

One EC120 helicopter was sold in 2012. No turnover was
recorded by the Group as a breakeven was recorded by AVIC
International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, from the operations
of Project EC120 in 2012 of which the Group shares 80%. The
aero-technology related business segment recorded profit of
HK$5,289,000 (2011: HK$541,000) for the year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Others

During the year, the Group completed its disposal of its entire
47.91% equity interest in Fidelity Finance Leasing Limited
("Fidelity Finance”) and its subsidiary, and the assignment of
the shareholder’s loan due and owing to the Group by Fidelity
Finance, to Sino Gas Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Environmental Investment Holdings Limited (“CEIH"),
an associate of the Group, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$51,776,000 which was satisfied by convertible bonds
issued by CEIH. As a result, a gain on disposal of associates
of HK$19,958,000 (2011: Nil) was recorded by the Group.
In addition, in respect of the derivative embedded in the
convertible bonds, the Group also recorded fair value loss on
derivative financial instrument of HK$12,672,000 in 2012. The
fair value of the derivative financial instrument was determined
based on the valuation performed by independent professionally
qualified valuer. The fair value loss represented a decrease
in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument as at
31 December 2012 as compared with that on the issue date
which was mainly due to the reduction in the time value of
the derivative financial instrument and the drop in share price
of CEIH.

During the year, the Group disposed of certain listed investments
and recorded net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments of HK$223,313,000 (2011: HK$331,047,000).
In addition, the Group recorded share of profits of
jointly-controlled entity and associates of HK$207,650,000
(2011: HK$127,951,000). The increase was mainly attributable
to the satisfactory results achieved by the jointly-controlled
entity as it recorded a substantial gain on disposal of its
available-for-sale investments. The Group also recorded bank
interest income of HK$14,137,000 (2011: HK$3,361,000) and
dividend income from an available-for-sale listed investment of
HK$4,377,000 (2011: HK$5,250,000) for the year.
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PROSPECTS

The Group, as an investment holding company, is committed to
making investments in the aero-technology related business and
other fields, and aims to enhance its value and create long-term
return for its shareholders with returns on investments and
operating profits. Given that China is encouraging the
development of its aviation industry, particularly the reform
of low-altitude airspace management, the aero-technology
related business will have a golden opportunity for development
in future. Meanwhile, with the extensive industry experience
and established customer base of Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu,
the Group is optimistic about the prospect of its knitting and
textile business. The Group will identify the projects with a
bright development prospect, and will continue to review and
optimise its business portfolios.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
Wu Guangquan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, capital structure and financial resources

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current assets
of HK$1,180,482,000 (2011: HK$1,245,575,000), including
cash and bank balances and time deposits in an aggregate
of HK$1,031,415,000 (2011: HK$796,308,000). The Group’s
current liabilities as at 31 December 2012 were HK$92,972,000
(2011: HK$268,209,000).

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 30,070,000
shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited at prices ranging from HK$0.227 to HK$0.255 per
share for an aggregate consideration with the relevant expenses
totalling HK$7,288,000. 19,454,000 repurchased shares were
cancelled during the year while 10,616,000 repurchased shares
were subsequently cancelled.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent amounted to HK$1,952,617,000
(2011: HK$2,150,907,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$466,140,000 (2011: HK$468,085,000) and reserves of
HK$1,486,477,000 (2011: HK$1,682,822,000). The Group's
outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012
amounted to HK$14,625,000 (2011: HK$37,073,000). The
Group’s gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of total bank
borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent, was 1% (2011: 2%).

The Group’s banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

Charges on the Group’s assets

Details of the charges on the Group’s assets are set out in note
33(a) to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. In view of the fact
that the Group tries to match its assets and liabilities with the
same currency, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
is minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere is this annual
report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, there were 105 (2011: 97) employees
in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are determined in
consideration of market conditions and the performance of
the individuals concerned, and are subject to review from time
to time. The Group also provides other staff benefits including
medical and life insurance, and grants discretionary incentive
bonuses and share options to eligible staff based on their
performance and contributions to the Group.
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EENEESEZEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guangquan, aged 50, has been an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company since March 2010. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wu holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and
is a senior accountant. He is the president of AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”) and a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC International
(HK) Group”), both of which are substantial shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Wu is also the board chairman of AVIC
International Shenzhen Company Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”).
He has extensive experience in finance, administration and
management. Mr. Wu is an executive director, the chairman
and, a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of AVIC International Holdings Limited
("AVIC IHL", formerly known as CATIC Shenzhen Holdings
Limited), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also the board
chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Tianma”) and,
was the board chairman of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd.
(“Rainbow"”) and Fiyta Holdings Ltd (“Fiyta”). Tianma, Fiyta and
Rainbow are all listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ji Guirong, aged 51, has been an Executive Director,
a Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since September 2001. He holds a Master’s degree
in Engineering Management and a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering and is a senior engineer. Mr. Ji is responsible for
the Group's overall management and development of corporate
strategies in relation to corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, project investments and diversification activities.
He is also a director of AVIC International (HK) Group, Tacko
International Limited (“Tacko”) and Speed Profit Enterprises
Limited (“Speed Profit”). Tacko and Speed Profit are substantial
shareholders of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ji is a non-executive director,
the chairman, a member of the remuneration committee and,
a member and the chairman of the nomination committee of
China Environmental Investment Holdings Limited (“CEIH", an
associate of the Company listed on the Stock Exchange), and, a
director and the vice chairman of Navinfo Co., Ltd., a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 48, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since February 2008 and appointed Deputy
Chairman of the Company with effect from 28 January 2013. He
holds a Master’s degree in Aeronautical Engineering, a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering and a Postgraduate Diploma in Financial
Accounting, and is a professional senior accountant. Mr. Pan
served at the Ministry of Aviation Industry and the audit
department of the Ministry of Aero-Space Industry. In 1993,
he was transferred to AVIC International and served as deputy
director and director of the audit division. Mr. Pan has been
appointed as a vice president and the chief financial officer of
AVIC International since 2001. He is also a director of AVIC
International (HK) Group and Tacko. Mr. Pan has many years
experience in financial management, supervision and audit,
and has substantial experience in the area of finance, capital
operation and risk management. He is also an executive director
of AVIC IHL and was an independent director of Shenzhen
Century Plaza Hotel Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

Mr. You Lei, aged 44, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 28 January 2013. He holds an Executive
Master’'s degree in Business Administration, a Master's
degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor’s degree in
Electronic Engineering, and is a senior engineer. Mr. You is
an executive vice president of AVIC International, a director
of AVIC International (HK) Group, the general manager of
AVIC Shenzhen and the chairman of the board of directors of
Shenzhen Shennan Circuit Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience
in business administration. Mr. You is also an executive director
of AVIC IHL and the vice chairman of the board of directors of
Tianma, and was the vice chairman of the board of directors of
Fiyta and a director of Rainbow.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENREESECEE

Mr. Zhang Chuanjun, aged 42, joined the Company in October
2003 as the Chief Financial Officer and has been an Executive
Director of the Company since February 2008. He holds a
Master’s degree and a Bachelor’'s degree in Management
Accounting and is a senior accountant. Mr. Zhang is responsible
for the Group’s corporate finance, accounting and treasury
functions. He has been appointed as deputy chief financial
officer of AVIC International since September 2011. Mr. Zhang
is also the chief financial officer of AVIC International (HK)
Group and, a director of Speed Profit and certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang is an executive director
and a vice president of CEIH, and an executive director of
Mongolia Investment Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Jiang Wei, aged 56, had been an Executive Director
and a Deputy Chairman of the Company since May 2010
until his resignation on 28 January 2013. He holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor’s degree in
Aeronautics Engine Design and is a professional senior engineer.
Mr. Jiang is the chairman of the supervisory committee of
AVIC International. He was a deputy chief engineer of China
Aviation Industry Corporation | and, the chairman and the
general manager of AVIC Shenyang Liming Aero-Engine (Group)
Corporation Ltd. Mr. Jiang has extensive experience in foreign
trading and corporate management.

Mr. Liu Rongchun, aged 59, had been an Executive Director of
the Company since April 2005 until his resignation on 28 January
2013. He holds a Master’s degree in Aeronautical Engineering
and, a Bachelor’s degree in Aeronautical Engineering and
Industrial Foreign Trading, and is a professional senior engineer.
Mr. Liu is a senior assistant president of AVIC International and
a director of Tacko. He has served AVIC International since
1986 and has over 34 years of experience in technology, policy
research, sales and marketing and business management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond, aged 60, has been a Non-executive
Director of the Company since May 1999. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and a Master of Science degree
in Business Administration. Mr. Ip is also deputy managing
director of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, an executive
director and deputy chairman of Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited, the senior vice president and chief investment
officer of CK Life Sciences Int’l., (Holdings) Inc., a non-executive
director of ARA Asset Management Limited (an Asian real
estate fund management company listed in Singapore), TOM
Group Limited, Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, Shougang
Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (all being
listed companies), ARA Asset Management (Fortune) Limited as
the manager of Fortune REIT and Hui Xian Asset Management
Limited as the manager of Hui Xian REIT, and a director of ARA
Trust Management (Suntec) Limited as the manager of Suntec
REIT. Fortune REIT is listed in Hong Kong and Singapore, Hui
Xian REIT is listed in Hong Kong whereas Suntec REIT is listed
in Singapore.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, J;, sBs, aged 69, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is also a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chu received his Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Management at Northeastern University and was awarded
an honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (formerly known
as Jiuzhou Development Company Limited), all being listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENREESECEE

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 58, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December 2007. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Science honours degree in Chemistry and Administration. He
is the deputy managing partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co. CPA
(Practising). Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK as well as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, UK and an associate member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He
is an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Holdings (International) Company Limited, China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited and Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, all being listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li is also an advisor of China Vanke
Co., Ltd, a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Zhaoxi, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Li
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He is a
senior research fellow of and served as a deputy director at
the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research
Center under the State Council of the People’'s Republic of
China. Mr. Li has carried out research on corporate reforms and
management for over 28 years. He is an independent director of
Liaoning Hongyang Energy Resource Invest Co., Ltd, a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hao, aged 39, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
joined the Group in December 2010 and is responsible to assist
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Master’s degree
and a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a senior
accountant. He has over 18 years of experience in accounting
and finance. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
former “Code on Corporate Governance Practices” (effective
until 31 March 2012) and of the new “Corporate Governance
Code” (the "CG Code") (effective from 1 April 2012) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except as noted hereunder:

1. all Non-executive Directors were appointed without
specific terms (code provision A.4.1), details of which are
mentioned under the section Non-executive Directors in
this report;

2. the Company has not established a nomination
committee (code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4), details
of which are mentioned under the section Board of
Directors in this report;

3. the Non-executive Director and an Independent Non-
executive Director were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held in May 2012 due
to other business commitments (code provision A.6.7);

4. the Company did not have formal letters of appointment
for Directors until early December 2012 (code provision
D.1.4); and

5 the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the

annual general meeting of the Company held in May
2012 as he was on an overseas engagement (code
provision E.1.2).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Report
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”

Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A reminder is served by the Company to each
Director twice annually of the black out period that the Director
cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing in the
securities and derivatives of the Company. In the case of the
Chief Executive Officer himself, he must notify the Chairman
and receive a dated written acknowledgement before any
dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year 2012.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transaction by
relevant employees (include any employee of the Company or
a director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of
the Company, who, because of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities). No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a Board of Directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company'’s affairs.
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Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors,
including Chairman and two Deputy Chairmen, and four
Non-executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. With the exception of Mr. You Wei joined
the Board as Executive Director and Mr. Pan Linwu appointed
as a Deputy Chairman on 28 January 2013, all other existing
Directors served for the whole year 2012. In addition, Mr. Jiang
Wei resigned as Executive Director and Deputy Chairman, and
Mr. Liu Rongchun resigned as Executive Director, both effective
on 28 January 2013. The biographical details of the Directors
are set out on pages 8 to 12 of this annual report. There is
no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between Board members.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A new Director appointed by the Board (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy or an addition to the existing Board)
after the preceding annual general meeting shall subject to
retirement and shall then be eligible for re-election at the first
general meeting after his appointment.

The Company currently does not establish a nomination
committee. The Board is directly in charge of nomination of
directors. In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
the Board shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that the number
of directors as appointed shall not exceed the maximum number
determined from time to time by the members in general
meeting. For nomination, consideration will be made to the
qualifications and capabilities of the nominated individual.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirement of the CG Code.
The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance
matters during the year 2012:

1. adoption of corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;
2. adoption of the CG Code as the Company’s corporate

governance practices;
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3. review the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group (if any);

4. review the compliance with the CG Code; and

5. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company are delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and make operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

In December 2012, the Company had issued formal letters
of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of this insurance each year.

All Directors have access to the services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance through the Chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends
to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and, together with any supporting Board papers, are available
to all Board members. During the year 2012, seven full Board
meetings were held by the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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The attendance of individual directors at Board meetings and

other Committee meetings as well as annual general meeting

during the year 2012 are set out in the table below:

SEEN T —FAHFEERERLL
%5 B B B A R R SR A R
TR

Number of meetings attended/held Annual
HE/ BTEERE General
Remuneration Audit Meeting
Board Committee Committee L
Director = Ezg ¥MzEe  ENZEE BAEXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Wu Guangquan Rk 6/7 2/2 -
Ji Guirong FEH 17 - - v
Pan Linwu EIE 6/7 = = v
Zhang Chuanjun REE 717 - - v
Jiang Wei e 5/7 = =
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R-FE—=F—F
ZFHEHE)
Liu Rongchun LS 6/7 - -
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R=F—=F—H
ZFHEHE)
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond e 717 = =
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David KRBk 717 22 22 v/
Li Ka Fai, David FRE 717 212 212 v/
Li Zhaoxi FhE 717 - 212

R-F—ZFR EFEFATES (B
BYFRTES) HREATEFTHENE
MTBITT — K& - RRRBFAEIH
R-T-——FARATEBRTEMBERAE -

During the year 2012, a meeting was held by the Chairman
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) without presence of the Executive Directors.
Save for the annual general meeting, no other general meeting
was held during the year 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL BEEEIIIREXERE

DEVELOPMENT

According to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors

BEEERMHNCHE  EEN_E——_FK
received the following training during the year 2012: BT -
Type of continuous professional
development programmes
RESERRIEER
Reading materials  Attending briefing

and updates sessions/seminars

Director Bz MEMBRENEN HEENE WHE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Wu Guangquan R 4
Ji Guirong FER 4
Pan Linwu EME v/
Zhang Chuanjun KEE v
Jiang Wei =& 4
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R=F—=F—F4
Z+/NHEHE)
Liu Rongchun EES 4
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R=F—=F—FH
Z+/NHFHE)
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond HER v
Independent BUFHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David Rohh 4
Li Ka Fai, David FHIE 4
Li Zhaoxi FIKER 4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separate from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are Mr. Wu Guangquan and Mr. Ji Guirong
respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its
role and for setting its agenda and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set
out in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skill and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three out of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-
executive Directors are appointed without specific terms, but
are subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
the section Board of Directors.
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Starting on 31 December 2012, the Company must appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-
third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. On
31 December 2012, the Board consisted of ten Directors. Three
of the ten Directors were Independent Non-executive Directors,
which was below one-third of the Board. The Company
published an announcement on 31 December 2012 explaining
details of this non-compliance with Rule 3.10A. Following the
change in Directors announced by the Company on 28 January
2013, the number of Directors was reduced from ten to nine, of
which three Directors are Independent Non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board) and the Company has
complied with Rule 3.10A.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Wu Guangquan, and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as Chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year
2012 to review and recommend the remuneration of all Non-
executive Directors and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
the section Board of Directors.
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The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associate is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2012, the

Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of

individual executive directors and senior management”.

Details of remuneration of members of senior management of
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out below:

TTBRABHFMEBR Z T2 ENREBILHT
EENFBEREXBRERNRIHN -
B R BB ARRNITES - RIEHH
BR - EEEHEEMBEATSSEE
EEEFNEH - N ——FN - FME
BECRMT(REZSBRET  BEXME
MATEZERSMEEABNTHMEFE) B
B o

BE-FT—_F+t-A=t+—HAHLFE &
AREEREZHMESREIMT -

pul

Number of
individuals
Remuneration [ k7 AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

Two members of senior management of the Company resigned
on 1 January 2013.

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. It
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as Chairman),
Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Li Zhaoxi. The Audit Committee
met twice during the year 2012 to review the interim and final
results, the interim and annual reports and internal control
procedures of the Group. The attendance of each member is
set out in the table above under the section Board of Directors.
The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set out in its
terms of reference.
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Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing (including interim review) and non-auditing (including
accounting and tax advisory) services for the year ended 31
December 2012 amount to HK$1,580,000 and HK$245,000
respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation
of financial statements of each financial period and ensuring
those financial statements provide a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow for the relevant financial period. In preparing the
financial statements, the Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent
and reasonable judgment and estimation, and, prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of this annual
report.

Corporate Governance Report
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Group's system of internal control
plays a key role in the management of risks that is significant
to the fulfillment of its business objectives. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud. Procedures have also been designed for compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

A review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, was conducted at the end of 2012 by
senior management of the Company. The result was reported to
the Audit Committee and thereafter to the Board. No material
deficiency was identified. During the year 2012, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control system was
adequate and effective and the Company has complied with
the provisions on internal control of the CG Code. The Board
confirms that systems and procedures are in place to identify,
control and report on significant risks involved in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are
monitored by the Board with the support of various committees
and senior management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yuen Chee, Sara is the Company Secretary and
an employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. She has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2012, there were no
change on the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company.

&

R EBES 4

EEeHRNAKENANETRARAAERE
B WEBERZESHEAMIEEET
mEf o ARE AR EEARELERER
THAEBAREZRBRERLEESERA
B REEELXIFEEARRE - RF
FESTREAREHASENMHERER
BMIETIERE EREFAHBEELR - 1F
TREH EEAFER  BRIFFREHRSE
2 (EFEBH) BRIE - R IRE R5HHA
e L ERFERE R HDAR] - RAFERFTIAER

]

5F e

R-ZT——FK ARFAEEREERAR
AABEERRNEEERARIEETR
o BRARFTREMBEREE - BRVK
B 2BEENAREEULEREREY
- HEERCABRZREERERRAE
FERE  ARRALBEEREANRE - X
T—_FR EX2R/NRANAEEE
EGeBERANN  ARBETTEEE
ATRIBN AR EZENEY - EFERBZ
R e BEIRA N A B B R Al 8
N B BN B T R I E R
T EERAEREREGREER BN
TEERLRRNEE -

REWE
2MELTRAARZAARERES X
EEMEFEAE - RLL—HET TR
AIETHFE AR  SRIEIES -

REBRE
ARAEBH 2 EHAE AT BHAA

N ABEwWww.avic.com.hk F B 33 BT 15 7 48
Bwww.hkexnews.hk e R ZZE—_F R -
FiNNETFAEE s AN DS & Ui 3 )i



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETEBERZER (F8) FRAF

Annual Report 2012

T _FFRW

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Convening of a special general meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene
a special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered
Office”), which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more

requisitionists.

If the Board do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Corporate Governance Report
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The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
the section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website
at www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follow:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at general
meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication
with shareholders has always been one of the Company’s
priorities. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,

announcements and circulars.
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The Company had established and adopted a shareholders’
communication policy during the year 2012.

General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other Directors and
senior management endeavor to attend any general meeting of
the Company and answer queries from shareholders. Separate
resolution is proposed for each issue by the Chairman of the
meeting at each general meeting. Notice of general meeting is
served together with the circular to the shareholders at least
twenty clear business days before an annual general meeting
and at least twenty-one days before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days before a meeting other than an annual general meeting
or a meeting for the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the Chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll are also be answered by the
Chairman of the meeting.

Corporate Governance Report

SRERRE

R-B——FR - ARFAEHELRANTR
OB -

ARBZBRAGRHEESERRERE
BIRIFEE EFEEF  FEEMES
RERGEREHFEARANERMBEREA
g URERRRER - @2 FREEK
RAE LR ERFBEZERIRER - R
AREBEERBRDHINERRRBFEAS
RO TEEXARNRSBBBIIRERL
SR _t B UERAREMERE (K
RBEFRELRBBRIRBRZ GHK
SN D HEZEX AR - ARANRBRE e

IR ZET RETRROFAIEFRBRAS
R R @R FE S - MBRLAE AR
EXARREHNEAREBTHEEZEFED

.

i)

o

Avic

0\

27




AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMEIRERZR (FE) ARATF

Annual Report 2012
—E-FER

28

Report of the Directors

EXERE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 44 to 185 of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 186 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$185,551,833. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$173,525,782, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and these shares were subsequently cancelled by
the Company. The summary details of those transactions are
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19,454,000 repurchased shares were cancelled during the
year while 10,616,000 repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled. Upon cancellation of these repurchased shares, the
total issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value of HK$3,007,000. In addition, the premium together
with the relevant expenses paid for the repurchase of the shares
in an aggregate of HK$4,281,499 has been charged to the
share premium account.

The purchase of the Company’s shares during the year was
effected by the Directors, pursuant to the mandate from
shareholders received at the last annual general meeting, with
a view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the
net asset value per share and earnings per share of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:
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2012 2011
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% %

Percentage of purchases: HERBEESL
From the largest supplier REFRAHER 29 19
From the five largest suppliers RERAXEERE 50 48

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:
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Percentage of sales: HEEAIL
To the largest customer REZRARFE 29 15
To the five largest customers RKERARF 72 36
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) during
the year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Wu Guangquan

Ji Guirong

Pan Linwu

You Lei (appointed on 28 January 2013)
Zhang Chuanjun

Jiang Wei (resigned on 28 January 2013)

Liu Rongchun (resigned on 28 January 2013)

Non-executive Director:

Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. You Lei, who
was appointed as a director subsequent to the preceding annual
general meeting, will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and will then be eligible to offer himself for
re-election at the meeting. Furthermore, Messrs. Ip Tak Chuen,
Edmond, Li Ka Fai, David and Ji Guirong will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”). The
Company as at the date of this report still considered all
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 8 to 12
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management) is determined with reference to their qualification,
expertise and experience in the industry, competence, duties
and responsibilities within the Group, the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as the market benchmark and
the prevailing market conditions. Employees shall also be eligible
to receive a discretionary year-end incentive bonus, which shall
be determined by the Group at its absolute discretion taking
into account, inter alia, the Group’s operating performance,
market conditions in which the Group operates and the
individual’s performance, payable at such time as the Group
may consider appropriate and discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in share options of associated corporation
of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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capital as at
31 December
2012
Number Capacity R-Z——F
Name of Relationship of share and nature +ZHA=+-—H
associated with the  options held  of interest BB LE
Name of Director Notes corporation Company Pt 203 ERITRE
EEpE Kz HBEEEE HAQXRZBRE BREZE EaEtE ZEA
Ji Guirong (a) China Environmental Associate 52,350,000 Beneficial 1.43
TEH Investment /NG| owner
Holdings Limited EXBBA
("CEIH")
FEIRRIRE
BRHERAR
([RERE])
Zhang Chuanjun (b) CEIH Associate 40,000,000 Beneficial 1.09
REE PERE =N owner
- Z-DN
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EEERE
Notes: Htst
(@ () On 23 August 2007, Mr. Ji was granted options to subscribe (@ () Mm-EZ ti)\ﬂ +=8 ' F=&4&
for an aggregate of 14,900,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 EIRA H AR E514,900,0000 & K E
each in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.35 per share. TEO ZO%TEZEF' Bl IR 1% AR < B AR
With effect from 23 February 2012, the number and the CITEBABR035EIIL c RZF
exercise price of the share options granted were adjusted —:ﬁ:ﬂ ZT-HRE BEZER
from 14,900,000 to 22,350,000 and HK$0.35 per share to S H RITEEE 9 5IH14,900,000
HK$0.233 per share respectively. A% F % £22,350,0000% LA K & f%0.35
IR EFAR0.2338 T °
(i) On 31 August 2010, Mr. Ji was granted options to subscribe (i) RZZT—FNA=+—0 F&4&
for an aggregate of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 B A H AR 8820,000,0008% & 2 @
each in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.341 per share. B0.207%8 7o 2 1 B IR 1% E AR 2 fE AR
With effect from 23 February 2012, the number and the W ITEEABRO3MNBIL - RZF
exercise price of the share options granted were adjusted ——Hf-_A-+=H BEZBER
from 20,000,000 to 30,000,000 and HK$0.341 per share to g B R1TEEE » 518H20,000,000
HK$0.227 per share respectively. f% 3 # %=30,000,0008% A & & &
034VETHEZER0.2278 T -
The exercise periods of the options are as follows: BT AT ¢

Avic
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Number of share options

BREHE

Exercise period

1T

7,450,000 1/10/2007 to 31/1/2015
TERAE+A-HEZ-AF—A=t+—H
7,450,000 1/1/2008 to 31/1/2015
—EENEF-RA—-BEZE-—RF—A=1T—H
7,450,000 1/7/2008 to 31/1/2015
“ZETNFtA—HEZZT-—RF—A=+—H
30,000,000 31/8/2010 to 30/8/2020
“E-ZTFEN\A=+-BE_Z-ZF/\A=+H
52,350,000

No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year. All the above options remained outstanding as at 31 R o

December 2012.

Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂxféﬁ:ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂ@i g
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EFERE

(b) () On 3 January 2006, Mr. Zhang was granted options to by () RZZEZTRF—HA=R ' REEER
subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 ordinary shares & #£ A 7 810,000, OOOH BREE
of HK$0.20 each in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.20 0.208 T 2 P EIRIR & WA 2 B AR
per share. # - TEERER0.20ET -

(i)  On 31 August 2010, Mr. Zhang was granted options to (i) MZ—ZZT— i)\ﬂz—i——El VR
subscribe for an aggregate of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of JER A KA 220,000, OOOH FHRmE
HK$0.20 each in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.341 per {80.207 EZEF‘ B IR $ R AR 2 B AR
share. With effect from 23 February 2012, the number and HE —;195(5;;%1}950,341%% o NTE

the exercise price of the share options granted were adjusted
from 20,000,000 to 30,000,000 and HK$0.341 per share to
HK$0.227 per share respectively.

——H-_A-+=H# KHZ2BER
28 R1T#E 5 5H20,000,0008%
i % Z£30,000,0000% A & & i%0.341

BILHBEFMR0.2278TT °
BRETEHOT

The exercise periods of the options are as follows:

Number of share options Exercise period

BREHE TEH

5,000,000 1/7/2006 to 31/1/2015
—EERF+A—HEZZ—RAF—A=1+—H

5,000,000 1/1/2007 to 31/1/2015
— T +F—fF—HE-_Z—AF—A=1+—H

30,000,000 31/8/2010 to 30/8/2020
—E—ZTFNA=+—HBE_TE-_ZTF/\A=+H

40,000,000

No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during EW CWEBREEITE  WaEESK

the year. All the above options remained outstanding as at 31 BeM—_T——F+-_A=+—H kit

December 2012. Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁx%&'ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ o

ATEERARTRETHBEARAISR
in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company. kBN 30

Certain Directors have non-beneficial personal equity interests

BEXRFEN R-E——F+-_A=+
—H ARREZHEEEBREC(ES RS
EIEH) F321HEATFELHARTHET
TEMH%%}%Zﬂxfﬁﬁk*ﬁﬁ%ﬂifﬁz%%ﬁiiﬁé
B NERERBEETAMAMNS AR
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to KRBT 2 2SR B o

the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

35

Avic

0\



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
hEMETRERER (FE) FRAT

Annual Report 2012
—E-FER

36

Report of the Directors

EXERE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares above and in the
section Share option scheme below, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further
details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note 36 to
the financial statements.

No share option has been outstanding and granted under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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FERRREMALIREOGR
B R 2 B

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the following interests of 5% or more RZE——F+_A=+—8' ' AQ7aK%

of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

R

(BH MGG F336ikETF 2 ELMA
AR A5 %HIA LD ETRAERIAT ¢

Percentage of

the Company's

issued share

capital as at

31 December

2012

Number of RZB-Zf

Capacity and ordinary +=A=+-H

Name of shareholders Notes nature of interest shares held R NGTREE)

RRER st SR RERNE FEEEREA REZEDL

Speed Profit Enterprises Limited (“Speed Profit") @) Beneficial owner 508,616,000 10.91
AENERERAE ([1457]) ERBAA

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko") () Beneficial owner 1,386,943,000 29.75
ERBEAA

Through a controlled 508,616,000 10.91
corporation
FRRIEEE

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 40.66
("AVIC International (HK) Group”) corporation
HRER (BE) §BERAR iy e el

(ThmER (%) %&])

AVIC International Holding Corporation ("AVIC International ") Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 40.66
PR R R ERER AR (T HEE]) corporation
ERREEE

Aviation Industry Corporation of China ("AVIC") Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 40.66
TEMEIEEEAR ((PHIX]) corporation
BAXELE

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited (“Atlantis Capital”) (b) Through a controlled 370,284,000 7.94
corporation
BBXEEE

Liu Yang (b) Through a controlled 370,284,000 7.94
Ep corporation
BBXEEE

Avic

0\

37



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMEIRERZR (FE) ARATF

Annual Report 2012
—E-FER

38

Report of the Directors

EEERE
Notes:

(a) Speed Profit is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tacko, which in
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International (HK)
Group. AVIC International (HK) Group is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AVIC International, which in turn is a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of AVIC. Accordingly, Tacko is deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Speed Profit; and each of
AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is
deemed to be interested in the aggregate shares directly held
by Speed Profit and Tacko.

(b) Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notices filed by each of
Atlantis Capital and Ms. Liu Yang on 17 May 2012, Atlantis
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (”Atlantis
Investment”) was disclosed as having direct interest in
370,284,000 shares and was wholly-owned by Atlantis Capital,
which in turn was wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Yang. Therefore,
Atlantis Capital and Ms. Liu Yang are deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Atlantis Investment.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group during the year are set
out in note 44 to the financial statements.

None of the related party transactions mentioned above falls

within the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(a) I 15 & ATackoz Z B M B A A
Tacko B MBI (FH8) EBZ22EH
BAR - MBI (F5) EBATFME
Brz2EBWBRAR - MHAMEEEFMR
T#27F2EWBAR ° AL Tacko#
RARBHINEFNFEZRMD 2 EE=
mAAEMmEER (F5) &8 - AHEEREHR
MIFEIWRBRENEF RTackoEE
BB BEEP AR

(b) 1R % B Atlantis Capital & 2|5 22+ 5 7
REZTE——FRATELARKZERRK
BAA - ARKREERE (B8) ARAR
([ IR E ) # 5, R 1370,284,0008%
i B B H s 30 R Atlantis Capital
2EBE RERBHERZT2EHRE -
At Atlantis Capital 2R Z+118 A&
REREEREZROER#ER -

BREXFIKEIN RZBE—ZF+R=
T— B BMEALBEERE(ESF MPERK
BI) E33616A T ERZ AR A MR K AEE

Ry Z RFIOKR °

BEBL RS
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5 BRI HRAM T -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director of the Company had
interests in the following businesses conducted through the
company named below which are considered to compete or be
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of interest

Report of the Directors

EFERE
EERBFEUERBT L 2ES

Py ARATHEEEB TMATRAE T
PR - MRS EHRE EHRARE
EWEARAEENEBERFRTLEE
ERMERT

Nature of
competing business

BEx=ps NGRS BEHER BEEL
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond ~ Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited ~ Deputy managing director — Property development
EE RIE% (8F) BRAH AlESeKE and investment

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of the Excluded Businesses. When
making decisions on the businesses of the Excluded Businesses
of the Group, Mr. Ip, in the performance of his duties as
Director, has acted and will continue to act in the best interest
of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

- Investment in securities
(collectively defined as
"Excluded Businesses”)
- MEERIRE
—BARE

(e [#BR XK D)

EXeRRAKEAENE MK ERGRE
%o EAKREREMERRRIRENULES
BREZEBETARE - BEEEGERTARF
EERBE  CRUBSBENUARF &
EMEITE -

PBREREXTHREE
BRIEARNRBARRTESNERNRIBEES
o #EARER  ARATELEAER
NABBITIRANEEE Z25%
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EEEHRE
AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Wu Guangquan
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 March 2013
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= 22 k@ £ R
Ell ERNST & YOUNG SR EanmTREIY
A B2

e | i 1 Tim Mei Avenue
x 7 Central, Hong Kong 2% +852 2846 9888

Tel: +852 2846 9888

{HE: +852 2868 4432

Fax: +852 2868 4432

www.ey.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDING (HK) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the ‘“Company’’)
and its subsidiaries (together, the ""Group’’) set out on pages
44 to 185, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ZHAVIC INTERNATIONAL
HOLDING (HK) LIMITED

HEIMZE T RERER
(B8) ARAFAZERR
(REFERFMA L2 ERA )

RAE TR EZTEMZE T XRERER (&
B)BRRAR(TERA]) REKEB QA
(R EEE]) BNFI4EEFI185HK
REMBHRE WY BBRREE_FT——F
TZA=+—HANRA RARMBARE
EBEZBLEFENGRNRGEER  KEE@E
Wk HEEREPR  KARERER
PAR £ B R BUR M E AL MR fRRE -

EENGEAMBRRARKEN
B

EZARERBEDTESIMASHRMHNEL
S| EEAME L R BEPINRERE -
REREEERE AR BRNGEAMBERE
AR BREERR/VENANEEE - AR
R BB T R IS N RN REF e sk T 8
HEEXRHRRA
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

&

BB ARV R

BANEEEREBERFANEZHZEEEY
BHRRELER - RANBEKBEARER
AVA—NN—F0KER BT (EREA
EEg) e MU TAIEEMAE - BB
THARENATHEMERA L BB K
EEME-

BMERBEBEHMAGHEMNTEERZ
HANRENTER - BLERZREFIE
STREERMRAE - WRI MRTESZ KM
ESAERTIUESRAMBBREARET TR
ERIERFERRA -

BEp RTIRAAEEUE B4R 6 SRR
IS BMBEREENNERER - IEEN
RABURMZ AT H - B BN
AR M EBBARA M BERREFEEKNER
RALE R - ERHEZ SRR - ZHBENE
BEZARREEEMN AL NGEE M BEHRER
MHEMARERE - ARFTEENERRERF -
BAIFHEZ AT AREENARERRE
R BRNEREFEEFTARANSIEER
MEBEEREHHNEENAEE - ARk
B M mRN BRIIHRTR -

HFIHEE  BRPAMESHELEEREAE
B ARMANESZBERIEHER -
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2013

=R

BHRE ZEREUMBBRCRERE
MHBESEIAEEMAAMKKR BEAF
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FMBHOR - ko EREEREZALFENG
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Year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —E——F+-_HA=1+—"HItFE

2012 2011
ZE-Cf 5%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations  operation Total operations operation Total
b7 | BAL it BRIE
Rexy Bexy fit Bex BeZH At
Notes HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
Wi AT AT AT BT BT BT
(Note 12) (Note 12)
(H#12) (Wit12)
REVENUE Wi 5 87,328,163 - 87,328,163 - 303,232,773 303,232,773
Cost of sales EERA (77,224,314) - (17,224,314) - (273,448,525 (273,448 ,525)
Gross profit E 10,103,849 - 10,103,849 - 29,784,248 29,784,248
QOther income A 5 25,247,730 - 25247730 13386603 19028821 32415424
Administrative expenses THERER (51,615.956) - (51615950) (39,431,323 (16,952,505 (56,383,918)
Other operating income, net EREERAFE 6 649,880 - 649,880 = 173,447 173,447
Finance costs BHRX 7 (3,050,736) - (3,050,736) - (1567,778)  (1,567,778)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate BB AHEREAEZ
B - - - (3,081,826) - (3,0813826)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBSNF 2 I 13a) 19,958,414 - 19,958,414 = = =
Gain on additional investment ENBENRREL
in an associate il - - - 2,143,056 - 2,143,056
Share of profits and losses of: HERFIRES :
Jointly-controlled entity HREELE 20 229,743,979 - 229,743,979 127,756,610 - 127,756,610
Associates HELT (22,094,004) - (22,094,004) 194,062 - 194,062
Net gain on disposal of ML Ed
available-for-sale investments RELFHE 2@ 223313135 - 223313135 331,046,551 - 331,046,551
Fair value loss on derivative EEBIAY
financial instrument NYEEE 28 (12,671,668) - (12,671,668) - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZHE 39 3,028,233 - 3,02823 - 148,489,035  148489,035
PROFIT BEFORE TAX [yl 422,612,856 - 422612,85 432,013,733 172,955,178 604,968,911
Income tax expense FEREY 10 (61,617,712) - (61,617,712) (111,191,360) (20,188,963) (131,380,323)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERR 360,995,144 - 360,995,144 320,822,373 152,766,215 473,588,588
Attributable to: RN -
Equity holders of the parent NAERRAA 11 359,651,230 - 359,651,230 320,822,373 146,696,878 467,519,251
Non-controlling interests FEERER 1,343,914 - 133914 - 6069337 6,069,337
360,995,144 - 360,995,144 320,822,373 152,766,215 473,588,588
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRBUTABLETO AR EERZEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EfESREH
OF THE PARENT 14
- Basic and diluted -EALER HK7.70 cents N/A HKT.J0cents  HK6.79 cents  HK3.11cents  HK9.90 cents

7.70%4l TER 77084 6.795 1l 3.1 9.9073 1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income &8 2 H W FHE &

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T— —F+_A=+—HILFE
2012 2011
—EB-——F —T——%F
Notes HKS$ HKS$
it BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ZRE R R 360,995,144 473,588,588
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hfh 2 mE WS
Available-for-sale investments: Al HENRE
Change in fair value N EEH 23 (121,540,836) (929,298,296)
Reclassification adjustments for FSrAGZERERZ
gains included in the consolidated MBEzEFHLE
income statement A
— Gain on disposal — HEZHE 23(a) (247,950,880)  (331,046,551)
— Conversion of convertible — B[R E
bonds into interests HE R AR B
in an associate NAER 23(b) - (13,961,927)
Income tax effect Fristic w2 34 93,155,136 332,432,600
(276,336,580) (941,874,174)
Share of other comprehensive income S HFAIEENT 2
of a jointly-controlled entity Em2milzs (296,679,305) (701,496,414)
Share of other comprehensive income — {hEE< A a] 2
of associates E 2 mEEs 7,276,653 2,612,000
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINEBEE 2
of foreign operations IE X Z=%8 15,629,767 14,639,218
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REHMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (HBRBIEE) (550,109,465) (1,626,119,370)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AERHKFETH
FOR THE YEAR (189,114,321) (1,152,530,782)
Attributable to: T AL (L -
Equity holders of the parent NAERFEEA 11 (190,523,716) (1,162,009,245)
Non-controlling interests JEVE R RE 1,409,395 9,478,463
(189,114,321) (1,152,530,782)
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2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Notes HK$ HK$
izt Er BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERE 15 46,087,240 49,961,296
Prepaid land lease payments FE L E R 16 3,105,075 3,126,952
Goodwill [k 17, 38 4,193,707 4,193,707
Intangible asset mIEE 18 950,817 1,140,980
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity H[FEZE#E QAR ZKE 20 314,707,211 510,161,056
Interests in associates Bt N AR 21 302,951,535 202,785,969
Deposit paid for acquisition of IWEEMER S 2ES
a property 27 40,000,000 -
Financial asset under Project EC120 EC1201BB v i &&= 22 = -
Available-for-sale investments AIHEENKE 23 193,975,451 534,904,646
Total non-current assets EmENEERE 905,971,036  1,306,274,606
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 24 2,776,536 4,540,453
Trade and bills receivables FEWE FEREF R ER 25 13,815,192 10,965,384
Loans to associates ML & N AR E R 21 12,250,000 53,243,122
Loan to a related company mEENTIRENE R 26 18,750,000 18,292,683
Prepayments, deposits and AR ~ ek
other receivables H U R 27 32,461,335 305,944,306
Derivative financial instrument mESmIT A 28 9,014,631 -
Time deposit TFHITE= 29 - 164,634,146
Pledged time deposits BRI E HTFE R 29 6,625,000 365,854
Cash and cash equivalents HeLREeEE 29 1,024,789,556 631,308,018
1,120,482,250 1,189,293,966
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAERBBEFHED
BE 13 60,000,000 56,280,761
Total current assets MENEERE 1,180,482,250  1,245,574,727
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to a non-controlling shareholder EN—RWEARZ
of a subsidiary FEFERR AR R 30 320,317 94,895
Trade and bills payables ENEBZERARERE 37 43,823,954 24,600,267
Tax payable FEA A 16,535,960 38,761,759
Other payables and accruals HihENAZIBNETER 32 17,666,439 167,678,922
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEBITER 33 14,625,000 37,073,171
Total current liabilities nBBERE 92,971,670 268,209,014
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 1,087,510,580 977,365,713
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2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Notes HK$ HK$
it BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRABAERSE
LIABILITIES 1,993,481,616  2,283,640,319
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBERS
Deferred tax liabilities FEEBREAE 34 35,282,673 128,560,660
Net assets BEFE 1,958,198,943 2,155,079,659
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity ARIEEEEAEML
holders of the parent s
Issued capital BRI 35 466,139,700 468,085,100
Reserves e 37(a)  1,486,477,279 1,682,821,990
1,952,616,979  2,150,907,090
Non-controlling interests RS 5,581,964 4,172,569
Total equity EmARE 1,958,198,943  2,155,079,659
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
ZE REE
Director Director
EE E
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—ZE——F+-_A=+—HIFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account

RESH N RiraER

Notes HKS HKS
it AT AT
At 1 January 2011 W=E——F—-f—-A 475,439,700 193,970,166
Profit for the year REHR] - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: REAMRENE :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments, net of tax AHLENREZ AT EES
(ME%EE) = -
Share of other comprehensive income of a jointly-controlled entity PMELRER Rz £t 2 A = =
Share of other comprehensive income of an associate AEBERR K E A = =
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BEBNEBEL R ZE = =
Total comprehensive income for the year AE2ENRLE = -
Transfer to reserve fund ERZRES - -
Repurchase of shares EE R 35 (7,354,600) (17,731,950)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEHEAR 38 = =
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BERACENRREES! = =
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-fA=1-H 468,085,100 176,238,216
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—ZE——F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
NEEnE ARG ER

Property, Available-
plant and for-sale
Share equipment investment Exchange
option revaluation revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained Non-controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
g BEM  AELERE
RRERE  REEEER Btk fEe  EXRDMEE BT GH FEERER EREE
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
AT AT BT AT AT AT AT BT AT
(note 37(a))
(Wt3703))

5,100,000 13,148,823 2,358,448,289 7,511,499 33,589,368 274,870,493 3,362,078,338 71645896 3,433,724,234

= = = = = 467,519,251 467,519,251 6,069,337 473,588,588

= - (941,874174) = = (941,874,174) (941,874,174)

= - (701,49%,414) = = - (701,496,414) - (701,496,414)
= = = = 2,612,000 = 2,612,000 = 2,612,000
= = = = 11,230,092 = 11,230,092 3,409,126 14,639,218
= - (1,643,370,588) = 13,842,092 467,519,251 (1,162,009,245) 9478463  (1,152,530,782)
- - - 213,115 - (213,115) - = -
- - - - - - (25,086,550 - (25,086,550)
= = = = = = = 4,172,569 4,172,569
= (13,148,823) = (7.724,614) (24,075,453) 20,873,437 (24,075,453) (71,818,526) (95,893,979)
_ _ - - = - - (9,305,833) (9,305,833)
5,100,000 = 715,077,701 = 23,356,007 763,050,066 2,150,907,090 4172,569  2,155,079,659
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R S =2 B &

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—ZE——F+-_A=+—HIFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account

BRIRA kiEER

Note HKS HK$
it AT AT
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—%-f—H 468,085,100 176,238,216*
Profit for the year REHR] - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: REAMRENE :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments, net of tax AHLENREZ AT EES
(BRHER) = =
Share of other comprehensive income of a jointly-controlled entity PMELRER Rz £t 2 A - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates AEBERR K E A - =
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BEBNEBEL R ZE - =
Total comprehensive income for the year AE2ENRLE = =
Transfer to reserve fund ERZRES - -
Repurchase of shares EERLA 35 (1,945,400) (2,712,434)
Disposal of subsidiaries LENBAR = =

At 31 December 2012

RZE-Z4+=A=1-AH

466,139,700 173,525,782*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of HK$1,486,477,279 (2011: HK$1,682,821,990) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Avic
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—ZE——F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

NEARERAAELER
Available-
for-sale
Treasury Share investment Exchange

shares option revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained Non-controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity

it tERE
ERR R RE BRERE Eftfe fke EXRBRE BHEN &it FERER BHAE
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
Ax V-7 Ar AT V-7 Ax AT B Ax

(note 37(a))
(H#37(a)

- 5,100,000%  715,077,701* -* 23,356,007*  763,050,066* 2,150,907,090 4,172,569  2,155,079,659
- - - - - 359,651,230 359,651,230 1,343,914 360,995,144
- - (276,336,580) - - - (276,336,580) - (276,336,580)
- - (296,679,305) - - - (296,679,305) - (296,679,305)
- 92,877 - - 7,183,776 - 7,276,653 - 7,276,653
- - - - 15,564,286 - 15,564,286 65,481 15,629,767
- 92,877  (573,015,885) - 22,748,062 359,651,230 (190,523,716) 1,409,395  (189,114,321)
- - - 5,278,662 - (5,278,662) - - -
(2,630,665) - - - - - (7,288,499) - (7,288,499)
- - - - (477,896) - (477,896) - (477,896)
(2,630,665)* 5192,877*  142,061,816* 5,278,662* 45,626,173*  1,117,422,634* 1,952,616,979 5,581,964  1,958,198,943
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—E-_FER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Zr IR EFRER
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HILFE
2012 2011
—EB-=fF —E——%F
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 Er BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRERTRF |
From continuing operations P R E S 422,612,856 432,013,733
From a discontinued operation R IEEEET = 172,955,178
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs BT B 2 7 3,050,736 7,567,778
Share of profits and losses of a D EEEEAT R
jointly-controlled entity and Fk NG i)
associates &5 18 (207,649,975) (127,950,672)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (14,137,489) (3,360,697)
Interest income on convertible bonds R e N a3
issued by an associate ZAIBRES
Z A B A 5 (849,692) (155,833)
Interest income on loans to associates A B N B AR AY
ERZ A BHA 5 (2,277,351) (1,626,198)
Interest income on other receivables H b FE U BR K
2 FBHA 5 (1,126,383) (667,892)
Interest income on a loan to MEER AR HR
a related company Bz FEHA 5 (1,160,803) (1,368,110)
Interest income on loans to a M HEEHEE A AR A
jointly-controlled entity Rz FERA 5 = (1,763,162)
Dividend income from an AREERN LT
available-for-sale listed investment &7l EMA 5 (4,376,674) (5,249,769)
Loss on deemed disposal of an WRALE
associate /Nl 5= = 3,081,826
Gain on additional investment in 18 N EE 2 N 7]
an associate wEZFHE - (2,143,056)
Loss on disposal of items of property,  HE&EWE « BEEM
plant and equipment RBIEE 2 EE 6 676,981 110,333
Depreciation e 6 5,566,770 24,137,574
Amortisation of customer relationship RERR 2 6 190,163 -
Recognition of prepaid land EREM LA E R
lease payments 6 72,938 767,793
Provision for impairment of trade and EUNE FERF K
bills receivables FBRZRERE 6 919,620 =
Recovery of other receivables EH b W BR 3k 2 W ) 6 (1,569,500) (173,447)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBREARZFE  130) (19,958,414) -
Net gain on disposal of HERMHEER
available-for-sale investments B 2 FH)E 23(a) (223,313,135)  (331,046,551)
Fair value loss on derivative PTHESRMTE
financial instrument <N HEEE 28 12,671,668 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QR ZFHE 39 (3,028,233) (148,489,035)
(33,685,917) 16,639,793

&
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2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Notes HK$ HK$
itz3 BT BT
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,877,428 11,955,907
Increase in trade and bills receivables JEUNE 5 BRF M =12 N (3,495,294) (5,018,014)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR - EZe Rk
deposits and other receivables H i e Ik BR 5K
A (45hn) 88,470,379 (67,930,746)
Increase/(decrease) in trade B E SRR ER
and bills payables a0, G 18,608,680 (69,334,064)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E b pE S BR A L FE ST
and accruals BREmM, Cr) (130,481,837) 136,814,479
Cash generated from/(used in) operations “&:&EzE4E (FH)
Z2IR% (58,706,561) 23,127,355
Interest paid B A (3,050,736) (7,567,778)
Overseas tax paid B EINMRIE (67,885,349) (92,829,866)
Net cash flows used in operating EE R E (F
activities ZBREREFE (129,642,646) (77,270,289)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBZBEERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend from a jointly-controlled entity & B £ FEERE A 72 XS 128,518,519 -
Dividends from an available-for-sale KErHEER
listed investment WA ZRE 9,910,830 =
Purchases of items of property, BAME - BEM
plant and equipment FHEIBER 15 (2,002,076) (15,317,167)
Purchases of additional equity B A RIRESN
investment in associates f% RIS & (175,023,000) -
Advance of loans to a MARIZEEARFEER
jointly-controlled entity - (31,707,317)
Advance of loans to associates ML & QR HE R = (16,145,772)
Repayment of loans from a HEZEEAREEER
jointly-controlled entity - 56,097,561
Repayment of loans from an associate B4R RIEEEXR 41,456,188 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME BEM
property, plant and equipment RAEIEE PSR - 60,649
Net proceeds from disposal of HEJHREEMNIRE
available-for-sale investments FTiS $5508 240,970,449 346,074,791
Receipt of a deferred consideration W BRI (B 39 184,000,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESHEAREREEN
classified as held for sale BEMSHIA 13(b) 13,170,732 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W BB I B A 7 38 = (4,937,867)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE B A A 39 (35,643,470) 159,333,972
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows & &

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

TMEBR

2012 2011
—E-CF —E——fF
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 Er BT
Bank interest received Euﬁzfiﬁﬂ 8 14,137,489 2,830,282
Interest received on a loan to BEUREER R ERF S
a related company - 647,057
Interest received on convertible bonds B U BHE & A TEEIT 2
issued by an associate TWHXE%*Z*J B 517,759 275,000
Interest received on loans to a B R
jointly-controlled entity BEXF A - 1,763,162
Interest received on loans to associates U4 A T E 2 F & 4,572,453 8,480
Interest received on other receivables B Y E fib & U BE 3551 &, 1,126,383 460,859
Deposit paid for acquisition of BT 2 %
a property (40,000,000) =
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEEEHEIRL
time deposits (#0) (6,250,000) 35,704,878
Decrease/(increase) in a time deposit BEERIEAZN
with original maturity of more than —EAZEHEFER
three months when acquired WA (38 hn) 164,634,146 (164,634,146)
Net cash flows from investing activities & EshEL v H 4
mEFE 544,096,402 370,514,422
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans IRTTER 14,625,000 41,929,024
Repayment of bank loans Eﬁﬁfiﬁgﬁ (37,073,171) (12,195,122)
Dividend to non-controlling shareholders 45 F 35 A A% B A% 2 - (9,305,833)
Advance from the non-controlling —%W}% TZ;ETI
shareholder of a subsidiary AR R IR 2 R 225,422 -
Repurchases of shares EAEE ) 35 (7,288,499) (25,086,550)
Net cash flows used in financing activities @& )EENEH 2R &
MBI FREE (29,511,248) (4,658,481)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERREESEEMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 384,942,508 288,585,652
Cash and cash equivalents at FzRe kB eEE
beginning of year 631,308,018 340,002,935
Effect of foreign exchange b R F B B F 5
rate changes, net 8,539,030 2,719,431
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2AESRBEELEE
AT END OF YEAR 1,024,789,556 631,308,018
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRBEEEELR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS LD
Cash and bank balances We RRTETF 29 514,407,337 257,741,671
Non-pledged time deposits with BERRIEHE TR
original maturity of less than three =B Az & E 5
months when acquired T 29 510,382,219 373,566,347
1,024,789,556 631,308,018
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2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Notes HK$ HK$
it BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E G 15 27,025,794 27,415,387
Interests in subsidiaries R EENGIE 3 19 407,082,146 399,196,544
Available-for-sale investment A EHERNIRE 23 2,680,300 2,680,300
Total non-current assets IERBEELLE 436,788,240 429,292,231
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loans to an associate M E N AR E R 21 - 41,048,000
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE - EZe Rk
receivables H i e I BR X 27 13,204,499 217,133,270
Cash and cash equivalents BE&NReEE 29 385,734,911 179,692,013
Total current assets MEEEAE 398,939,410 437,873,283
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Tax payable FERIRRIE 6,744,528 6,744,528
Other payables and accruals HEENFIENETER 32 6,396,472 14,957,330
Total current liabilities mENBEEE 13,141,000 21,701,858
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 385,798,410 416,171,425
Net assets BEFE 822,586,650 845,463,656
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRA 35 466,139,700 468,085,100
Reserves HiE 37(b) 356,446,950 377,378,556
Total equity Em4RE 822,586,650 845,463,656
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
E3 ¢ REE
Director Director
EE BH
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2.1
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon'’s

Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
activities:

(i) the knitting and textile business; and

(ii) the aero-technology related business, including
the share of profit from the development,
manufacture and distribution of helicopters.

In the prior year, the Group was also involved in the
supply of electric and steam power until December 2011
when the Group disposed of such business.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding

company of the Company is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, which is incorporated in the

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
equity investments and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. Assets classified
as held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in note 2.4 to the financial statements. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

AAER
FEMETEEBRZER (BB 5
RARA—BRBRETMAKILZ
BRAR - KRR ZEMMRERE A
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda °

FR - AEETEREATES

(i)  SEBRHBES R

(i) MERMEBEXRS S8EFD
HRETTHASR  RHERK
HHATEE A 2 A o

RBEFE  AKETREENR
EAfE BEE-_ZT——F1t-A
AEBHEZEHRL

EZERRARARKERRAR
TEMEIXEERA  Z2FR
REARAME (THE]) FEMAK

~
VAR

mREXE
AMBEHRRDIRBEEZEGAMAE
(BEGEAE]) Rf2EAM
BHREER ([FEMBREER )
(EFEReHE M B REER
Fa R ([FEGsH2R]) M
2B BALERAZEFRA
RBERAGHZHRBEESR AR
BERRALERE R THRAKRE
ROTHE BT AR VAR FEF
B) NRARAFHENEETIR
HEREELR R FERBEEKRATZ
REEZY E—TREHRYHK
WERME2.4 - AHEMRABLZ
5 (BRIERBEEA) ©
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies

that may exist.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it results
in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate.

2.1

mEEXE (F)
mER%E
FAW%%%&%$“?&EW%
AR ([ AEE]) BE-F—=
FT_A=t—BLFEZHKR
Ko WBARNERREHE Y
BHRERDHERERNRE —BHZ G5
BRmE - MBARREDBHK
BREY (AAKEREGEHNESEX)
Bt AZAMBHREAA  X—H&
ABEEZEHERILEERILE - FAB
E@W AE&ERF X5 £EA
RARRGMELE 2 RERMNBR
BRARBEENFAKE BERE
i WERAREFEZI THUEE
BREH AT - ARER—Z -

AME S S| B ES 2 BHR AR
goMEBARZEZEWEAEDNE
BB IR -

MBARZHAERELEES B
RKREEIER &%ﬁx%k%o

i 7S 52 B 5k 5 P /BB 8 ) 2 P LA
AlgRIEERNZMBRAIZEE
(BHEEE) Zﬁﬁi f&  (i)E A FFHE A
a2 REE Rt Amz R

AMEERE UTERAVEKREZ
DNFE: (NERNEREREZ AT
B ¢ Rzt A& 2 ERIE e mE

£ BBREL - RNRELRE
W2k R R 2 AR R MRS AD T
REBEREF S REEARBER
7 o
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2.2
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

2.2 SRR RIBEEEH

AEECRAFENYBHRRTE
FERAA T EIETHEM B REE

U

BEMBASEY  FRMBESENE R
F15 (BET 1) (BETR) BARBE R
HEER - REZHBRR
SR ELFHEZEEAH

BAMBHRERN  RRMBREZASTHR
EIEACHES) (BiIX) 2B 1A -
RE-BEIKRE
B G EY BRI ENE SR (BTE)
F12% (BAIA) A -EEHE
i3

RO ERETEEYHRELER
BAPBRREBEEANBZE
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BEMEHRERZER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL B ES R 2E B
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and 7R £ [ 0 8 5 7N B 7S i R A FE R DA
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet TEBEMEBERERZFFT REE
effective, in these financial statements. A mE LR
HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First- ERBRBRRE EHEURRELER S 15

time Adoption of Hong Kong L (BETK) B LS
Financial Reporting Standards — ({B5TA) B & ER —
Government Loans? JFE 2
HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial BEAGRRE  BEMBRREERETE
Instruments: Disclosures — R E 7Y (B3] X) &R A -
Offsetting Financial Assets and CCHEY) RE - B BEEE
Financial Liabilities? KRB B &
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* ERBBRE LB TA
8208
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? BERGERE L AHERE
2012105
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements® EABRRE LA
RRIE115
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BEGBRE  BEREMELEER
Entities® ERE12%
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and  Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS EERBRE  EHEMBREENE10
HKFRS 12 Amendments 11 and HKFRS 12 - Transition R|FE105E g REBIRIREE
Guidance? ERMKHRE  AENRREBRRE

ERFENKR  BREERFE125% (B
BRMBRE A ERE)
ERIE 125

(85TA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS EEMBRE BB BREER
HKAS 27 (2011) 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) - YEBIZ10% - E10% - FEEER
Amendments Investment Entities® EHBTE ERBE12ELEE

AR BEITERE27R
F12% R (Z2——%)
B (BFTR) - REERE
ERE275%

(Z2——%)
CHEY,
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL

2.3 ERMEHRERZER
BHmEER (&)

REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

EAPBREE AFEHS?
815135

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 BEAQER  BEGFEAE R
Presentation of Financial F15% (BETR) B 5%
Statements — Presentation of CHES, 25 - B2 e
Items of Other Comprehensive KHz 25
Income!

Employee Benefits? BERGHER  ESEFS

F195
(Z2——F)
Separate Financial Statements? BEGER  BUHBHE
£27%
(Z2——F)
Investments in Associates and Joint BERGHER REELFAREELE
Ventures 5285 ZRE?
(Z2——F)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial BERGHER  BAERHEAEIR
Instruments: Presentation — £325% (BFIR) 2@ T A :
Offsetting Financial Assets and CHES, 25 - RHIEEE
Financial Liabilities? RETHEE

Stripping Costs in the Production

BEXRGLEERZST

Phase of a Surface Mine? WmERBZE AR
2)- 28
£205%
Amendments to a number of ZEENFE  RIEZERAFHR
HKFRSs issued in June 20122 —E——Ff HHSEREMBR
BoFENE  SEELZE

! R-ZE-——FtA—HXZ2R’H

2012 a2 FEBRRER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE—=F—HA—Hx®k2®%&H
January 2013 &2 FE AR E R

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE—WMF—A—HXZERA
January 2014 1R 2 FIE BRI AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 g RZZE-—DhF-—A—HRXZEH
January 2015 2 FE R AR
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to
disclose information about rights to set-off and
related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The
disclosures would provide users with information that is
useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures
are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity
shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify
the approach for the classification and measurement
of financial assets compared with the requirements of
HKAS 39.

2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of
the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO"). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
("OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 CHEMEEKRERZER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It
also addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based
on the preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is
not expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control.
It addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition
guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from
full retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period.
The amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments
are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to
which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10
is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures
related to unconsolidated structured entities, the
amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before HKFRS 12
is first applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December
2012 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set
out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not have
any impact on the Group as the Company is not an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 CHEMEEKRERZER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS
28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to these
standards issued in July and December 2012 from 1
January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January
2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains
and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2013.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined benefit
pension plans including removing the choice to defer the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes
include modifications to the timing of recognition for
termination benefits, the classification of short-term
employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from
1 January 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2013. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group. Those amendments that are expected to have a
significant impact on the Group'’s policies are as follows:
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2.3 ERMEHRERZER
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(a)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not
required to be presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities
to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity
holders.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the
joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

() an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control
of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entity

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject
to joint control, resulting in none of the participating
parties having unilateral control over the economic
activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investment in the jointly-controlled entity
is stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and reserves of the jointly-
controlled entity is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where
the profit sharing ratio is different to the Group’s
equity interest, the share of post-acquisition result of
the jointly-controlled entity is determined based on the
agreed profit sharing ratio. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investment in the jointly-controlled
entity, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled entity is
included as part of the Group’s investment in a jointly-
controlled entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group's interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s interests in
associates and is not individually tested for impairment.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations which is further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets held for sale” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets, goodwill and
non-current assets held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

24 FESTBRME (&)

ERAHREE ()

BMEDREEFERBCREESE
B (ReELBTAR) 2 fhetA
WEEEMETE - MBETELET
(ReELBTER) <A@ e R
LRREEE - AIZAERBERSSE -
HREAEERZHEBETENER
HAfE B o

IEERSIKRTREELET (HE
SELETAR)  MZETZEBN
LERLE  AFELE ZFEHL
BRE BERRHEZEERE
ZEAEBREZEEZREMEA-
FEUBERT - e 2 AEZKE
EXEERDRBERSELETT
ZEbn 2 HEEERE -

FUBEEZRE
BELRBEDFR  ANBFFH
BE (FE UBEE BELNA
FHEFRBEERIN) ETRER
AR BAMGFZEE AT RDEE
BM-BEZAIROBBUZEES
ReELBETZEREBERAFE
WMHERAMEZB S ERE X
PAMERIEERERE  HEHZEELT
EERABEELBINEMEE
BEANZBEERARER® &
HERT - HA WO #ERZEE
MBzREELETERE

Avic

0\

73



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMEIRERZR (FE) ARATF

Annual Report 2012
—E-FER

74

Notes to Financial Statements & 7 3R 3R ff 5

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+-A=+—H

2.4

Avic

0\

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost (or valuation) less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost or valuation of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Generation plant and 6.67 %
related structure
10% — 20%
20% - 33%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represented property, plant
and equipment which were in their acquisition phase
and was stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and was not depreciated. The acquisition phase of an
asset included the period when the asset was under
construction, installation and testing. Cost comprised
the direct costs of construction together with borrowing
costs incurred during the asset acquisition period that
theoretically could have been avoided if expenditure
for the asset had not been made. The capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceased when substantially all of the
activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use were completed. Construction in progress was
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when it was completed and ready
for use, notwithstanding any delays in the issue of
the relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant
authorities.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and negative net changes in fair value presented
as finance costs in the income statement. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to
loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets
depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation
does not affect any financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option at
designation, as these instruments cannot be reclassified
after initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only
occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other operating
expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities and financial asset under Project
EC120 as set out in notes 23 and 22, respectively, to
the financial statements. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability in
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
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to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. The determination of what is “significant”
or "prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value
has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the income statement - is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount
of the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of other income. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through the income
statement if the increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, or as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, and an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option
pricing models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T ESTHTHREME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity
through the setting up of a treasury shares reserve. No
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's
own equity instruments. Any difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration is recognised in
equity. Upon the cancellation of the treasury shares, the
relevant portion of the balances in the treasury shares
reserve will be transferred to the issued capital and the
share premium account.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants were recognised at their fair value
where there was reasonable assurance that the grant
would be received and all attaching conditions would
be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it was recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, were expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from the sale of electric and steam power, based
on actual consumption derived from the reading
of meters in the prior year;

(c) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group's
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 22);

(d) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Avic

0\

(e)

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

government grants, on a systematic basis over
the periods necessary to match the grant to the
costs that it is intended to compensate in the
prior year;

income from the sale of coal residues, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold in the
prior year; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for

the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to

eligible participants who contribute to the success of

the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)

of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-

based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity instruments (‘’equity-settled

transactions’’).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the
Group’s income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund for
those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the fund. This fund operated in a
way similar to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee left the fund prior to his/her interest in the
Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group were reduced by
the relevant amount of forfeited contributions. Upon
the implementation of the MPF Scheme with effect
from 1 December 2000, the provident fund was frozen
and no further contributions by the Group or the
eligible employees were made after that date. When
eligible employees leave the Group, they receive their
entitlements pursuant to the existing rules of this fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary
item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entity and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by the management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Classification of equity investments among investment
in subsidiaries, investment in associates and investment
in a jointly-controlled entity

In determining whether an equity investment is classified
as investment in subsidiaries, investment in associates
and investment in a jointly-controlled entity, the Group
considers a number of factors including (1) whether the
Group has the power to exercise control; (2) whether the
Group can exercise significant influence; and (3) whether
the participating parties have unilateral control over the
operating and financial policies of the investee company.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. As at
31 December 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill on
the acquisition of a subsidiary was HK$4,193,707 (2011:
HK$4,193,707). Further details are included in note 17
to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. As at 31 December 2012, the
amount of unrecognised tax losses was approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2011: HK$15,456,000). Further details
are included in note 34 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group and
the Company have to consider various factors, such as
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group and the Company with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each financial year based
on changes in circumstances. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2012 were HK$46,087,240
(2011: HK$49,961,296) and HK$27,025,794 (2011:
HK$27,415,387), respectively. Further details are
included in note 15 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and deposits
and other receivables

The Group and the Company maintains an allowance
for estimated losses arising from the inability of the
customers or borrowers to make the required payments.
The Group and the Company make the estimates
based on the ageing of trade and bills receivables
and deposits and other receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the customers or borrowers
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group and the
Company would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and the future results would be
affected. The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
and bills receivables and deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2012 were HK$13,815,192
(2011: HK$10,965,384) and HK$66,996,973 (2011:
HK$303,617,849), respectively. The carrying amount
of the Company’s deposits and other receivables was
HK$10,115,855 (2011: HK$215,875,504). The Company
did not have any trade and bills receivables. Further
details are included in notes 25 and 27 to the financial
statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the knitting and textile business segment engages
in the production and distribution of knitting and
textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing;

(b) the aero-technology related business segment
engages in the share of profit from the
development, manufacture and distribution of
helicopters; and

(c) the electric and steam power supply segment
engages in the generation and sale of electric and
steam power (discontinued in 2011).

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit for the year. The adjusted profit for the
year is measured consistently with the Group’s profit for
the year except that head office’s other income, gain on
disposal of associates, loss on deemed disposal of an
associate, gain on additional investment in an associate,
share of profits and losses of the jointly-controlled entity
and associates, gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments, fair value loss on derivative financial
instrument, gain on disposal of subsidiaries as well as
head office and corporate expenses and unallocated
income tax are excluded from such measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT 4. RESZ|ER (&
INFORMATION (continued)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
FRBERY BRLEERH At
Knitting and Aero-technology Electric and steam
textile business related business Total power supply Total
HERGEEH MERTRERS At ENRRAHE Ait
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“%--f “3——F -%--F “3—F -8-°F “F—F 2%-°f “FT—F “%--f “T—F _§--F “F—F
HKS$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
fEr TEr TEr TEr FEm  TEr  FErn  TEr TEn  TEr  TEr  TET
Segment revenue: Al
Sales to external customers  SNIEP#E 87,328 - - - 81328 - - 30323 - 303233 87,328 303233
Segment results PHEE 2,743 = 5,289 541 8,032 541 - 17,644 - 17,644 8,032 18,185
Reconciliation: H% -
Unallocated other income AAREMRA 12988 8360 - 21 12,988 8881
Corporate and other PEREBAARAL
unallocated expenses (37,791)  (35,566) - (632)  (37,791)  (36,198)
Gain on disposal of associates ~ HEBENE 2 F|E 19,958 - - - 19,958 -
Loss on deemed disposal of R AHERZ AR
an associate LR - (3,082 - - - (3,082
Gain on additional investment  SENBENERE
in an associate Wailhe - 2,143 - - - 2,143
Share of profits and losses of: A EFIRER :
Jointly-controlled entity AREERA 29,784 127,757 - - 297 127757
Associates BENT (22,094) 194 - - (22,098) 194
Net gain on disposal of HEARHENRE
available-for-sale investments 2/ FF(H 223313 331,047 - - 23313 331,047
Fair value loss on derivative TEERTIAL
financial instrument ATEBE (12,672) = - - (12672) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &K BT 2 3,028 - - 148489 3,028 148489
Unallocated income tax expense KB EHER (63,511) (111,071) - (12756) (63511) (123,827)
Profit for the year RERH 360,995 320,823 - 152,766 360,995 473,589
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OPERATING SEGMENT 4., RESZER ()
INFORMATION (continued)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
b S BRIEEEEY &t
Knitting and Aero-technology Electric and steam
textile business related business Total power supply Total
HARGARS BERHEERY Rit ENREAHE At

2012 2011 2012 011 2012 20011 202 2011 2012 2011 2012 200
8§35 -8-f 5 F-%--f F-—F-F-F T F-F5-F_F-F8f_F-F
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

AT Fhr TErT TAT FAr  TArT  TAT Fér  TET  TAT  FAT AT

Other segment information: ~ Eft 9 H&H :

Bank interest income FATHIBHA 15 - 9,032 831 9,047 831 - 784 - 784 9,047 1,615
Unallocated amounts FOELE 5,090 1,725 - 2 5,090 1,746
14,137 2,556 - 805 14,137 3,361

Interest income on loans R EARIRES
to associates EFzHEHA = = 1,196 456 1,196 456 - - - - 1,196 456
Unallocated amounts APREE 1,081 1,170 - - 1081 1170
2,271 1,626 - - 2,277 1,626

Interest income on other EfERERZ

receivables FEMA - - 613 108 613 108 - - - - 613 108
Unallocated amounts FOEEE 513 560 - - 513 560
1,126 668 - - 1,126 668
Depreciation and amortisation & R & (3,648) - (587) (416)  (4,235) (416) - (22,641) - (22641) (4,235 (23,057)
Unallocated amounts FARER (1522)  (1,081) - - (15220 (1,081)
(5,757)  (1,497) - (22641)  (5757) (24,138)

Interest income on loans to MAREERARE

a jointly-controlled entity HWEFZFERA - - - 1763 - 1763 - - - - - 1763
Interest income onaloanto~ ABEA AR

a related company ERZREHA - - 1161 1368 1,061 1368 - - - - 1161 1,368
Finance costs HBET (3,051) = = - (3,051) = - (7,568) - (7,568)  (3,051) (7,568)
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

4K

nr

EoMER (&)

Geographical information i & &
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEIEEFEF Yzt
2012 2011
—E—C—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FBT
Mainland China B A3, 87,328 303,233

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

ERWSmENTRBEER

2T El S o

(b)  Non-current assets (b) ERBEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong BB 286,401 219,372
Mainland China A B P i 425,595 551,998
711,996 771,370
The non-current asset information above is based LHiERBEEERTHIRE
on the locations of the assets and excludes EZREE S WABE
financial instruments. ERTHE-
Information about a major customer —EBXTEEFZESR

Revenue of approximately HK$25,384,000 was derived
from sales by the knitting and textile business segment
to a single customer. In the prior year, revenue of
approximately HK$44,062,000 had been derived from
sales by the electric and steam power supply segment
to a single customer.

#925,384,00078 7T 2 W 25 Jh 7K & £
BEGBEBRI Y —BEFE ZH
£ BAEFE - 444,062,000/ T

ZWmIIKRBENR

H-REPZHE -

ARAKEDE



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZETRERZER (F8) FRAT
Annual Report 2012

—E-_FER

Notes to Financial Statements 81 %3 3R M 5%

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group'’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of knitting and textile products
sold and the net invoiced value of electric and steam

power sold.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

W 28 K2 EL U A

Wk (MEIARE 2 £X8) iR
BHEHBERHBER I ERFE
REEBNREAZETFE -

Yogs M EABBADHTEAT

2012 2011
—E—=F —E——fF
HKS HK$
BT BT
Revenue &
Sale of knitting and textile products RBEEEEG 2HE
attributable to continuing operations B4 T2 4 B EE 87,328,163 -
Generation and sale of electric and steam BRIMHEEER 2 EE
power attributable to a discontinued MEEBIREAR
operation - 303,232,773
87,328,163 303,232,773
Other income Hilr A
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 14,137,489 3,360,697
Interest income on convertible bonds REEENTREITZ
issued by an associate AR ES 2 FE WA 849,692 155,833
Interest income on loans to associates ML R RRER
B M BWA 2,277,351 1,626,198
Interest income on other receivables o e WAR B2 LB A 1,126,383 667,892
Interest income on a loan to a M EEE N AR AR
related company Bz F B WA 1,160,803 1,368,110
Interest income on loans to BB GRS INEIE 7o
a jointly-controlled entity ERZFEWA - 1,763,162
Dividend income from an available- AREHERN EMIRE Y
for-sale listed investment % B 4,376,674 5,249,769
Income from installation of infrastructure TEMERERZ WA
for steam supply = 3,064,837
Government grants* BT #EE* = 12,479,888
Income from sale of coal residues HERBZ WA - 2,560,120
Others Hib 1,319,338 118,918
25,247,730 32,415,424
Attributable to continuing operations B S TSR 25,247,730 13,386,603
Attributable to a discontinued operation BRI E TG EL - 19,028,821
25,247,730 32,415,424
* Various coal price subsidies and government grants 5 N T AT P E R 2 B K &

relating to anti-pollution

research activities in

Hangzhou, the PRC, were received from the government
authorities in Hangzhou. Government grants received
for which related expenditure had not yet been
undertaken were included in deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position. There were
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these grants.

B Rt BN ETZ
RIRHTIEE B 2 0t 2 TR 76 B)
€ HEERTRZHED KR

B IR T 6 B AR A B IS AR R
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=

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BR B A 2 A

AEEZBHADENE ME (G

(crediting)*: A)#:
2012 2011
—E——F —F—%F
Notes HKS$ HK$
BtaE BT BT
Cost of knitting and textile products #4564k R4 E B~
sold B AN 77,224,314 -
Cost of electric and steam power HEE ) RERZKA
supply - 273,448,525
Depreciation e 15 5,566,770 24,137,574
Amortisation of customer relationship & FRR 2 #iH 18 190,163 -
Minimum lease payments under TH REFEEEL 2
operating leases on land and =K
buildings 1,142,423 888,122
Recognition of prepaid land lease ERIEN L HEER
payments 16 72,938 767,793
Employee benefit expense (excluding {EEREFER (TRESE
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): EWME (#:28)) -
Wages and salaries TERH® 12,943,609 21,158,097
Pension scheme contributions* RIS EHE|H R 297,946 554,925
13,241,555 21,713,022
Other operating expenses/ Hibe &Ry
(income), net: () F 58 -
Provision for impairment of trade ERE SRR EEZ
and bills receivables BB 25 919,620 =
Recovery of other receivables oA E Y BR R 2 Y Bl (1,569,500) (173,447)
(649,880) (173,447)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B AT BN <& 1,580,000 1,848,000
Foreign exchange differences, net HNPE 3 M = ZE R ER (14,661) 931,719
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - KEME
plant and equipment TBE ZEE 676,981 110,333
E The disclosures presented in this note include all # A2 2 BREBERFE

amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the continuing

operations and a discontinued operation.

* At 31 December 2012, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to

the pension scheme in future years (2011: Nil).

REXBROKRIEREERBHAN
B GIA) Z2FiE&% -

* RZZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H"
N2 (@ I AT B2 YR 7R AT A
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FINANCE COSTS 7. HMBHEX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBRZ AT
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F--fF —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT Vv
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within ZBERAFREZEEZ
five years: RITERZFE
Attributable to continuing operations SEICE TSR 3,050,736 -
Attributable to a discontinued operation B IE R TS REG — 7,567,778
3,050,736 7,567,778
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMe
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BEEEBERIMBERAGZS
to the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of EmAR (T EMHRA]) REBRF
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 GOIE16ERBE s AFEEZME M
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: s
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B-—=-F _—T—F
HK$ HK$
ET BT
Fees we 876,000 876,000
Other emoluments: Hu s -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEN
B = 4,284,560 4,242,976
Performance related bonuses TERIBABIEAL 626,660 9,000,000
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEI R 274,477 274,477

5,185,697 13,517,453

6,061,697 14,393,453
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEME (&)
(continued)
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (a) BIAFEHTEE
The fees paid to Independent Non-executive REAZNTBILIFENTE
Directors during the year were as follows: E2HESWT
2012 2011
—E-—_—fF —F——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Chu Yu Lin, David RahEs 240,000 240,000
Li Ka Fai, David ZRAE 240,000 240,000
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER 60,000 60,000
540,000 540,000
There were no other emoluments payable to the G A A Bt A T B S
Independent Non-executive Directors during the FBITEEME (ZF——
year (2011: Nil). F ) o
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) BITEEK—BHEITES
Director
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
Hé o 2 IERR Rike
ne RENRIEZ HERA FTEIMR &
2012 HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
“E-Cf BT BT BT BT B
Executive Directors: HIES:
Wu Guangquan RtRE 36,000 - - - 36,000
Jiang Wei 3 36,000 - - - 36,000
Ji Guirong* FEE 36,000 3,524,600 500,000 219,000 4,279,600
Liu Rongchun B|%%& 36,000 - - - 36,000
Pan Linwu EME 36,000 - - - 36,000
Zhang Chuanjun REE 36,000 759,960 126,660 55,477 978,097
216,000 4,284,560 626,660 274,477 5,401,697
Non-executive Director:  JEH{TEE :
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond ~ E{&# 120,000 - - - 120,000
336,000 4,284,560 626,660 274,477 5,521,697
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EHEMSE (&
(continued)
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) BTEER—BFUTES
Director (continued) (&)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

o 2 THhRR ERE
wE  REDNG RAEA EIE N We@s

2011 HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS

—T——% BT BT BT BT BT

Executive Directors: HITES
Wu Guangquan Ry 36,000 = = = 36,000
Jiang Wei =& 36,000 = = = 36,000
Ji Guirong* ES-C 36,000 3,483,016 5,000,000 219,000 8,738,016
Liu Rongchun 2|%%& 36,000 = = = 36,000
Pan Linwu AR 36,000 = = = 36,000
Zhang Chuanjun RES 36,000 759,960 4,000,000 55477 4,851,437

216,000 4,242,976 9,000,000 274,477 13,733,453

Non-executive Director:  3EH/TEE -
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond ~ Zf&4 120,000 = = = 120,000

336,000 4,242,976 9,000,000 274,477 13,853,453

* Ji Guirong is the chief executive officer of the * FELANNTZITHE
Company & o
There was no arrangement under which a director A R P B EE = E
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during AIEMERAME -
the year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 0.
The five highest paid employees included two (2011:

two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration

for the year of the remaining three (2011: three) highest

paid employees who are not a director of the Company

are as follows:

LEREHER

RERGHEEQEMNS (22—
FWE) PITEF  BEMD 2
EER EXHES - HB=% (=%
——%F =) AFREHFEFE

BrMezHBNT ¢
Group
rEE
2012 2011
=B-=F —T——F
HK$ HK$
ET BT

Basic salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions

Performance-related bonuses

EXRFE 2UR
BEWHIz=S

RIS B

TERIRMARATEAL

2,181,920 1,913,920
101,318 109,814
2,600,000 2,020,000

4,883,238 4,043,734

The number of non-director highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

MEeETIBEZEZSFHFESE
B8 -

Number of employees

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

£%1,000,000/ T

1,000,001 L&
1,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 TE
3,000,000 7T

EEZE
2012 2011
—E-—F —F—%F
1 1
1 2
1 _
3 3
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INCOME TAX 10. FREH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made BRAEBARFERNLEFRERE
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits B ERBURR - A EELES
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2011: Nil). Taxes MEHEE (CE——F: &) H
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at @ﬁﬂ@gﬁfﬁi/ﬁﬁ M2 HIAF XA
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions ﬁ‘“%ﬁﬁﬁl%/ B[R B

in which the Group operates. Zﬁfd% TE

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B--F —E——F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Current — Elsewhere: BNE — Efhith =

Charge for the year RERE 65,822,550 130,594,573
Overprovision in prior years BEFEZIREE (4,081,987) =
Deferred (note 34) EIE (H1iF34) (122,851) 785,750
Total tax charge for the year AEFRIER Y 5 61,617,712 131,380,323
Attributable to continuing operations B TSR 61,617,712 111,191,360
Attributable to a discontinued operation BRI R E TS - 20,188,963

61,617,712 131,380,323

117

0\

Avic



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMETRERZE (F8) FRAT
Annual Report 2012

—E-FER

Notes to Financial Statements 81 7% R 3% it 5%

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge for the
year is as follows:

10. FREH (&

BARARETEMBARMEE
BRI OIEMREATERRER
Ag Rl (B E) MBI H (E
%) BAREHRIALH 2 BHEHRWT
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Group
rEE
2012 2011
—8-C-f —T——%
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before tax BRA A A 422,612,856 604,968,911
Tax at the statutory tax rates BAEMETE 2 A 108,239,309 153,618,007
Adjustment of current tax in respect of BT AR BN AR IR
previous period 2 (4,081,987) =
Profits and losses attributable to DR ERIEEDR R
a jointly-controlled entity and associates B A B2 RN REE (52,617,051)  (32,721,324)
Provision arising from changes of B IE R PR
undertaking of tax arrangements ol B e B - 26,492,776
Income not subject to tax BIABTMA (5,676,084)  (22,143,156)
Expenses not deductible for tax MR 2AX 15,753,525 6,134,020
Tax charge at the Group’s effective BAEEERTE14.6%
rate of 14.6% (2011: 21.7%) (Z2——F :21.7%)
ZBEAR X 61,617,712 131,380,323

The share of tax attributable to a jointly-controlled
entity and associates amounting to HK$68,929,716

DIiEEREERARRBE A2
B B A68,929,7168 T (—ZE——

(2011: HK$37,065,132) and HK$7,267,914 (2011:
HK$5,286,346), respectively, is included in “Share of
profits and losses of a jointly-controlled entity and
associates” in the consolidated income statement.

£ : 37,065,132/87T) K&7,267,914%87T
(ZZ——14 :5286,346/57T) OB
BEFERERZ [DHEXREEA
AR E N BB R EE] A o
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2012
includes a loss of HK$15,588,507 (2011: profit of
HK$165,734,491) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 37(b)).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
disposed of in aggregate 53% of its equity interest
in Zhejiang Sealand Thermoelectric Share Holding
Co. (“Zhejiang Sealand”) together with the Group’s
loans to Zhejiang Sealand and Polyson Investment
Limited (“Polyson”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$358,988,103.

Prior to the disposals of the Group’s interest in Zhejiang
Sealand, the Group held a 56% equity interest therein,
49% of which through Polyson and 7% through CATIC
Helicopter Development (Shenzhen) Limited (“CATIC
Helicopter SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

The results of the disposed subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2011 had been presented as a
discontinued operation on the consolidated income
statement.

11.

12.

NFEDFEARGRER

HE-_ZT——_F+-HA=+—HL
FEZAREREE ARLEE &
A BERARRAMBREAH
2 JE51815,588,5078 7t (=T — —
& 3 F165,734,4915%8 JT) (A1 it
37(b)) °

EAR IR ER
RBE-F-——F+-A=1+—H
IEFE AEELE R EHE

RERGAERAF (MG 2
B H3%MR AR - ERAEER
HINTEBERARGB 2 EEEE
Ff$ /8 22 A]Polyson Investment Limited
([Polyson]) 2 E & R E A
358,988,103 7T °

EA$’§IHj:.,\EAAﬁ/Li Xt

C REE R AT H56 %M A
*&ﬁn’ H F149%3% iBPolysonF A& -
T%RIBEBARR zHEZENBEA
AR R E A TR ORI B
BRAF ([RMEEAERI]) FF
i

ST -RLEFEZREEER

LENBRARANREHE_ZT——%F
—HR
AW RYADRIEEEET -
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. DRIEREEK (&2)
(continued)
The net cash flows incurred by the disposed subsidiaries EHEMBRARIEEZR @ REF
were as follows: FHAOT -
2011
—T——fF
HK$
BT
Operating activities KR (55,864,240)
Investing activities WEEE 24,133,655
Financing activities BB ZENEERIVZ
Net cash outflow RE M FEE (1,996,683)

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 13. PEAREEGHENEE

SALE
Group
A%m
2012 2011
—E——-F —E——f&
HK$ HK$
B BT
Interest in an associate (a) Bt N mlfERR(a) 60,000,000 43,110,029
Available-for-sale investment (b) A HERIRED) - 13,170,732
60,000,000 56,280,761
Notes: Wt
(a) As at 31 December 2012, the Group holds 22.66% (a) R-E——F+-_A=+—8"
equity interest in Sinbo Investment Limited and its AEEBFEBRARANZEWB A
subsidiaries (collectively as “Sinbo Group”) through AlKingspot Investment Limited
Kingspot Investment Limited (“Kingspot”), a ([Kingspot]) HEMBIREFR
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Sinbo Group RAIRHEMB AR (KBIFHE
is principally engaged in providing consulting services SE])22.66%H AN o
to Peace Map Co., Ltd (“Peace Map”), an associate of EEETERBEALAKEERRE
a jointly-controlled entity of the Group. AT E QR RRXTEE

ERMMERARD(XTED &
R IR
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13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 13. 7 EABEGSHENEE
SALE (continued) (&
Kiat - (&)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the interest in Sinbo
Group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of it and its sale is probable at
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, as at 31
December 2012, the 22.66% equity interest in Sinbo
Group is reclassified as asset held for sale at its net
carrying value of HK$60,000,000.

In the prior year, interest in an associate represented
47.91% equity interests in Fidelity Finance Leasing
Limited (“Fidelity Finance”) and its subsidiary
(collectively as “Fidelity Group”) which were owned
by Smartcon Investment Limited (“Smartcon”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Fidelity
Group is principally engaged in (i) providing finance
lease services, and consulting services and guarantees
thereto; (ii) acquiring assets worldwide for finance
leasing; and (iii) managing the residual value of assets
in a lease in the PRC.

On 2 November 2011, Smartcon and Sino Gas Finance
Limited (“Sino Gas Finance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Environmental Investment Holdings Limited
("CEIH"), an associate of the Group, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which (i) Smartcon had conditionally agreed to sell and
Sino Gas Finance had conditionally agreed to purchase
the 47.91% equity interest of Fidelity Group; and (ii)
Smartcon had conditionally agreed to sell and assign to
Sino Gas Finance and Sino Gas Finance had conditionally
agreed to purchase and accept the assignment of
the shareholder’s loan due and owing to Smartcon
by Fidelity Finance as at the date of the execution
of the agreement, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$51,775,872 which was satisfied by convertible
bonds issued by CEIH (the “Convertible Bond"). Prior
to the completion of this disposal, Sino Gas Finance
owned 35.4% of the equity interest of Fidelity Group.
Accordingly, the Group's interest in Fidelity Group had
been reclassified as asset held for sale at its net carrying
value at the date of the agreement. The disposal was
completed on 6 March 2012. A gain on disposal of
associates of HK$19,958,414 was resulted and was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year.

(a)

(%)

EERA FESEENESED
EZEERZ —REEERAT A
WAREEI R & - BRIRESRK
REREEZHMEEGS - Bt
R=ZF—=—F+=-A=+—H"
37 E % B 7922.66% % AN #E 25
% BR T /% {E60,000,0007% 7T B #
PEABEFLENEE -

BAEFE BEQRERER
FEHREREAR QA ([FH
MED REKEAR (5B IE
WEE] BEARFRZEWBAR
ASmartcon Investment Limited
([Smartcon]) #EH) 247.91%
RAEZ - FHEEETERF
()R B & M & AR % A KA
A R AR IS R AELR ¢ (IDTEE K
EMBEEEENETRERS
R(iEBREERHEE 2 #E °

RZEBE-——F+—-—RZH"
Smartcon£d /Rl R 88 BF 75 A IR
AE([FRERENE] - DAE
EEE N AP RRREERDE
RAR ([FRREK]) 22&H
BAR) FIVEBERGERwMZ
¥ Itk 0 (i) SmartconB 1§ R =
HEMPRREMBEGKERE
BAEBHEERZ47.91%0% 7~ #
%5 ¢ &(ii) SmartconB EHFE =
S RERM P2 B E K
HREBAREIEEENGZ
FIVEREHMERMNRER
SmartconZ REREH - BRER
51,775,872 7T + WA IR %
AR ES (AT REES]D
FRFUENMA - EREEEEZ
Bl - ARV SR EHRESR
35.4% M AR o FHUt - AKH
B R E 2 RS R R L%
BEACEREFEENOAAR
ERFEENEE - ZHEFHED
RZZB—ZF=ARNATK - A
bt EETREBE QR ZHHE
19,958,414 7 ERNAREE 2
RAEWERNER
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13.

14.
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ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) In the prior year, the available-for-sale investment
represented a 3% interest in Zhejiang Sealand. On 1
November 2011, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of its 3%
equity interest in Zhejiang Sealand together with the
loan to Zhejiang Sealand at an aggregate consideration
of RMB12,296,708 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,995,985). As the disposal had not been
completed as at 31 December 2011, the 3% interest
in Zhejiang Sealand had been reclassified as assets held
for sale at its fair value at the date of the agreement.
This disposal was completed on 9 March 2012. No gain
or loss was recorded on the disposal as this 3% equity
interest in Zhejiang Sealand had been stated at fair
value of HK$13,170,732 as at 31 December 2011.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of HK$359,651,230 (2011:
HK$467,519,251) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 4,668,670,176 (2011: 4,723,995,831)
in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share from
continuing operations is based on the profit for the
year from continuing operations attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of HK$359,651,230 (2011:
HK$320,822,373) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 4,668,670,176 (2011: 4,723,995,831)
in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share from the
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December
2011 was based on the profit for that year from
the discontinued operation attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of HK$146,696,878 and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,723,995,831 in issue during that year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during those years.

13.

14.

TRAFERFLENEE
(&

Hiet - (&

(b) RAFE - AT HERE RN
LBB 3% RS c R=ZF——
F+—A—8 AEHEHE—-ZF
YEZHIV—DHEAHER
& B AT 8 B K3 %A% A8 1 2
ERBTIDEBOER - AR
8512,296,7087t AR (HE
R #914,995,9857% JT) ° A &
E_T——F+-_A=1+—H%
B E MR - RIS
3RS ET DB ARG ES
VERAAFEINENFERLE
MEE - ZBEEER=Z—
—HEZRBABRK BRMIT
RSN AEE R T —
—F+=—A=+—BEAFHE
13,170,732 o3I 8R - iR IE L
EWEES Mg -

NAEEEBESAAEMN
BRER

BREXRAFTRE QR L EERS
B AL A F % #1359,651,230
B (ZF——F 1 467,519,251/8
JL) REREBEITE B2 N
#4,668,670,176f% (=& — — F :
4,723,995,8310%) 5T & -

REFELEEES 2 BIRERRBFTY
BEAREBESSEARGRER
IBEISE TS 2 AR 5 359,651,230
B (ZF——1F :320,822,373/8
T0) RFEREBEITE R Z TS
#4,668,670,176/% (— T — — £ :
4,723,995,8310%) £t & -

HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—H1
FEZREBERIEKEEBZE
BEABFDIREBELAAEBES
BEABLERAERIEECEER
2 7% F %% %1146,696,8787 7T M #%
FARNEBEITEL B2 MNEFTEH
4,723,995,831i% 55

ARERRETERREAEEE
BEPE T DWITHBR -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y% - BMEMNRE
EQUIPMENT
Group
AEE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
B HE
TiHREF BERES R#EfE RE Bt
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2012 —E-C-F
THEr=[
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——4
at 1 January 2012: +-A=+—-Ak
—Z-—-§-A-H:
Cost KA 34,314,146 10,876,425 3,155,766 9,002,899 57,349,236
Accumulated depreciation 2RnE (3,471,428) - (2,328,076) (1,588,436) (7,387,940)
Net carrying amount EEFE 30,842,718 10,876,425 827,690 7,414,463 49,961,296
At 1 January 2012, net of RZZE——%—-F—HQ"
accumulated depreciation HREENE 30,842,718 10,876,425 827,690 7,414,463 49,961,296
Additions INE 350,000 774,731 179,970 697,375 2,002,076
Disposals HeE - (590,678) (18,785) (67,518) (676,981)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HEMBAT (4:239) = = (50,595) - (50,595)
Depreciation provided FRMERE
during the year (1,029,394) (1,738,375) (364,910)  (2,434,091) (5,566,770)
Exchange realignment ERTREES 69,775 228,484 5,850 114,105 418,214
At 31 December 2012, net of RZE——%F
accumulated depreciation +-A=+—-8"
TREENE 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
At 31 December 2012: R-ZE——F
+-A=1+-H
Cost B 34,782,114 11,623,957  3,285926 9,875,163 59,567,160
Accumulated depreciation 2inE (4,549,015)  (2,073,370) (2,706,706) (4,150,829) (13,479,920)
Net carrying amount FmEaE 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Avic

EQUIPMENT

Group (continued)

REM (&)

(continued)

15.

M BENRE (E)

Generation
plant and Furniture,
Construction Land and related Plantand fixtures and Motor
in progress buildings structure  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
EEHE i KB
EETR THREF REBERE BERES R e At
HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT AT BT
31 December 2011 —&8-—-£+-B=1-H
At 1 January 2011: W=E—%-fA-H:
Cost or valuation WA EE 1,159,796 126,553,827 210,557,730 - 2,851,670 10,877,343 352,000,366
Accumulated depreciation  ZFERE - (39,297,153) = - (2,042,585)  (6,934,664) (48,274,402)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,159,796 87,256,674 210,557,730 = 809,085 3,942,679 303,725,964
At1January 2011, netof ~ RZZ——%-A-0-
accumulated depreciation Nk2EER 1,159,796 87,256,674 210,557,730 - 809,085 3,942,679 303,725,964
Additions AE 3,643,744 244,572 6,204,211 = 215,214 5,009,426 15,317,167
Transfers 25 (4,845,972) 76,903 4,769,069 = = = =
Acquisition of a subsidiary B —KHBAT
(note 38) (H38) - 3,964,147 - 10,876,425 102,232 4,388,329 19,331,133
Disposals HE = = = = - (170982  (170,982)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (Mit39)
(note 39) - (58,666,926) (211,574,035) — (3,968)  (3,486,687) (273,731,616)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year - (4,151,809) (17,343,054) = (295,302)  (2,347,409) (24,137,574)
Exchange realignment EH AR 42,432 2,119,157 7,386,079 = 429 79,107 9,627,204
At 31 December 2011, RZE——F
net of accumulated +=A=+-8"
depreciation nh2EnE - 30,842,718 - 10,876,425 827,690  7,414463 49,961,296
At 31 December 2011: WZE——F
+ZA=+-8:
Cost AR - 34,314,146 - 10,876,425 3,155,766 9,002,899 57,349,236
Accumulated depreciation  ZiETE - (3471428 - - (2,328076) (1,588,436) (7,387,940)
Net carrying amount FE¥E - 30,842,718 - 10,876,425 827,690 7,414,463 49,961,296
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

15. 9% - BRENRHE (&)

Company
¥IN/NC|
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
building  equipment vehicle Total
&M £B
T REF ST "B |t
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT
31 December 2012 —E-—_F
+=-A=+—~H
At 31 December 2011 and RZ-ZT——4F
1 January 2012: +-A=+—Hk
—F-——F—H—-H:
Cost AR 30,350,000 2,837,295 331,547 33,518,842
Accumulated depreciation 2iEmE (3,471,429) (2,300,479) (331,547) (6,103,455)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,878,571 536,816 - 27,415,387
At 1 January 2012, netof ~ RZT——_%
accumulated depreciation —R—B"
Nk 2BInE 26,878,571 536,816 - 27,415,387
Additions NE - 6,128 633,500 639,628
Depreciation provided during AT ER
the year (757,143) (272,078) - (1,029,221)
At 31 December 2012, R-ZT——%F
net of accumulated +ZA=+—8"
depreciation M RENE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
At 31 December 2012: RZE—ZF
+-RB=+—8:
Cost B 30,350,000 2,843,423 965,047 34,158,470
Accumulated depreciation 2iEhE (4,228,572) (2,572,557) (331,547) (7,132,676)
Net carrying amount BREFE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company (continued)

AT (&)

15. 9% - BRENRHE (&)

Furniture,
Land and  fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicle Total
R EHE
T REF P R EHI
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
31 December 2011 —E——fF
+t=ZA=+—H
At 1 January 2011: R-ZZ——%—H—RH:
Cost [B%N 30,350,000 2,809,911 331,547 33,491,458
Accumulated depreciation 2iEhE (2,714,286)  (2,019,898) (331,547)  (5,065,731)
Net carrying amount R FE 27,635,714 790,013 - 28,425,727
At 1 January 2011, netof ~R-ZT——&—HF—H"
accumulated depreciation Nk E2EinE 27,635,714 790,013 - 28,425,727
Additions NE = 27,384 - 27,384
Depreciation provided during FR#rER
the year (757,143) (280,581) - (1,037,724)
At 31 December 2011, NZTE——4F
net of accumulated +-A=+—8"
depreciation Mk RETE 26,878,571 536,816 - 27,415,387
At 31 December 2011: RZZE——F
+-A=t+—-8:
Cost [B%N 30,350,000 2,837,295 331,547 33,518,842
Accumulated depreciation 2iEhE (3,471,429)  (2,300,479) (331,547)  (6,103,455)
Net carrying amount AREHE 26,878,571 536,816 - 27,415,387
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y% - BMENRE (&)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
An analysis of the lease terms of the Group’s and the RNEB &KANGF 2L H R EFTHEE
Company’s land and buildings is as follows: DHTAT :
Group Company
FEE ERAH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--f ~—FT——% =ZB--f _"T——F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT B BT
At cost, located in: WA (IR

Hong Kong, held undera & - Ik HIRAOEA

medium term lease 30,350,000 30,350,000 30,350,000 30,350,000
Mainland China, held under A EIR - ZEH
a long term lease ik R e] 4,432,114 3,964,146 = =

34,782,114 34,314,146 30,350,000 30,350,000

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s land and R—ZTE——F+_A=+—8 " B
buildings located in Mainland China with an aggregate mFEABBLH4NNE71EBT (ZF
net book value of approximately HK$4,111,671 (2011: —— 14 13,964,146 L) 2 AL H
HK$3,964,146) were pledged to secure general banking MRAFREA 2 T RIEFEE R
facilities granted to the Group (note 33(a)(i)). B ERAEE-—RRITEEZE

&’ (B1aE33(a)(1)) -

127

Avic

0\



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMETRERZE (F8) FRAT
Annual Report 2012

! —E-FER

Notes to Financial Statements & 7 3R 3R ff 5

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+-A=+—H

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AN T HHAER

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B—-F —ZT——F
HK$ HK$
Er BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEKEE 3,205,171 29,548,353
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) W —K B A A
(Ktet38) - 3,205,171
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEHRBAR (#/:#39) - (29,884,137)
Exchange realignment fEE H A 46,359 1,103,577
Recognised during the year (note 6) FANER (KiE6) (72,938) (767,793)
Carrying amount at 31 December RNt+=-—A=+—H
ZARHEE 3,178,592 3,205,171
Current portion included in prepayments, mENED - BIEE
deposits and other receivables TARFIE - HER
H i YRR A (73,517) (78,219)
Non-current portion FEm BN &R D 3,105,075 3,126,952
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is MHEL IR PE AN IEE
held under a long term lease. HAFH 4935 o
As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s leasehold land R-ZE——F+=-_A=+—H"' Kk
located in Mainland China with net book value of M E(E 43,178,592 1T (ZFE ——
approximately HK$3,178,592 (2011: HK$3,205,171) F:3,2051718 L) ZASKEMALR
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted FEANH BE &S
to the Group (note 33(a)(ii)). REAEE—RIBITEEZER (M7

33(a)ii)) -
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GOODWILL 17. B&
Group
rEE
HK$
BT
Cost and net carrying amount at RZZFE——F—HA—BZKAR
1 January 2011 FREHE 30,493,201
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) WiE—RM B AR (Hf238) 4,193,707
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMBAR (A17£39) (30,493,201)
Cost and net carrying amount at R=-FB——F+=A=+—H8"
31 December 2011, 1 January 2012 RZ-ZE—_-—F—H—HERZZE—Z=-F
and 31 December 2012 TZ A=+ —BZHAREEFE 4,193,707
Impairment testing of goodwill BE 2R ERR
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of T R4 KWENIRESFHEERERA
SR BMRAT (“Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu”) has Al (DIREGe4]) REAZEE
been allocated to the knitting and textile business ENEEHBEMBER 2 REE
cash-generating unit, one of the reporting segments of BT (DASEEER —BAZHD
the Group, for impairment testing. ) ERERIE o
The recoverable amount of the knitting and textile HBROBEB  REEEETY
business cash-generating unit has been determined e HELIREGAEE n+
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow ZERAEERRSRETENH
projections based on financial budgets approved by s LBl 2 RIED XEE@E§
senior management covering a fifteen-year period. The BT HERMBBEEMIE - FE
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 11% BAZIHBERAE11% (T ——F:
(2011: 12%) and cash flows beyond the first five-year 12%) - BB AFHNR S RERS
period are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. R R o
Assumptions used in its cash flow projections to ETEEREARAZRERETEA
undertake impairment testing of goodwill are as follows: PrEAZ BT
Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine HBEEME-—BEENEZEHETD
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the BEEEFEN —FMERN T
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately EFEFE - WHAREBRAMGENRE
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency g o
improvements.
Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and FTHE—FIRABZITIRETIRBIA
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit. 3 I i BRI 7l B8 o 2 e FE JEL R o
The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent Bl 52 R A% 2 (B (E B AN 30 B SRR —
with external information sources. B o
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18.
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18. B EE
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Group
rEH
Customer
relationship
EEB&E
HK$
BT
31 December 2012 —E-——H+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2012, net of R-ZE——F—A—HB 2K
accumulated amortisation s RFEE 1,140,980
Amortisation provided during the year — F RN 58 & (190,163)
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZE——F+_-_HA=+—H 950,817
At 31 December 2012: R-E——F+-_RB=+—H:
Cost [N 1,140,980
Accumulated amortisation I (190,163)
Net carrying amount REFE 950,817
31 December 2011 —E2——+=H=+—8H
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of RZE——F—A—H2ZHA -
accumulated amortisation b RAEEE S -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) WHE—KWB AR (A7Z38) 1,140,980
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+=-A=+—H 1,140,980
At 31 December 2011 and R-E——EFE+=-_A=+—HEK
1 January 2012: —F——-F—H—A8:
Cost P AR 1,140,980
Accumulated amortisation RIEEH -
Net carrying amount REFE 1,140,980
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. B A SRR
Company
AAT

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$ HK$
ET BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRRD - HEAA 7,991 8,014
Due from subsidiaries P LT Bf /BB /R R 3R TE 452,245,570 444,359,945

452,253,561 444,367,959
Impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUHIE A RIFKIE 2R E (45,171,415) (45,171,415)

407,082,146 399,196,544

An impairment loss was recognised for amounts due FEWH B R B RIB D R EE
from subsidiaries because these subsidiaries had been B TBERZERBARSHE
loss-making for some time. B 18— ER AR o

The balances with the subsidiaries are unsecured, AN AR 2 A RRIESRTE A EK
interest-free and are not expected to be repaid within W 2B RBHEAR—FRNIE
one year. In the opinion of the directors, the amounts B -EZRA - ERMHMEQRHIE
due from the subsidiaries are considered as quasi-equity ARARMBARRHRCERSE
loans to the subsidiaries. e
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. B TR (&)

(continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of TERBARINBER R ZF B
T

the reporting period are as follows:

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and fully Percentage
registration paid-up ordinary/ of equity

132
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and place of registered attributable to
Name operations share capital the Company Principal activities
BRTRE
SRR REBERE NG 2
a8 EUEES dAfRAEHE ~REIBHREIMN TEXH
Direct  Indirect
BE &
CATIC Helicopter SZ** PRC/Mainland China HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
PR E FHER- hE /B 42,000,000%7¢ REER
Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu*** PRC/Mainland China HK$6,400,000 = 51 Production and
WL RS &+ + HE/RER 6,400,000/ distribution of
knitting and textile
products, knitted
fabrics and clothing
SRS Hm
ST R R AR EH
Billirich Investment Ltd.* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000%7T REZR
RERUHE /B
CATIC General Aviation Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong Ve REER
ERELHE /BE
Wahman Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REZR
ERELUHE /BE
Smartcon Investment Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E RERR
RERUHE /B
Starnet Investment Limited * British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REER
ERALHE /BE
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. MEAR#ER (&)

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of FEMBAAIRREBRRZF B

the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T: (&

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and fully Percentage
registration paid-up ordinary/ of equity
and place of registered attributable to
Name operations share capital the Company Principal activities
ERITRE
FEMAREL, REBRA AAFEM
B R ZfkEzEE  REAEZEEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
B &
Welly Investment Limited # British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REZR
RERUHE /B
Sumber Investment Limited # British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (EV REER
RERIEE /&R
Kingspot* British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 157T REZK
RBRLES /A%
Sino-Aviation Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("Sino-Aviation Investments”)*  Hong Kong ES BEER
RERUHE /B
Yipon Investment Limited * British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong E REER
RERIEE /&%
CATIC Helicopter (HK) Limited#  British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ET REZRR
RERIHS /A%

@ CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned & F AR B ORI AR 15 B A 51
enterprise under PRC law. EMAINERE -

£ Zhejang Dongyang Jinniu is registered as a co-operative e AL R 5 & AR AR 1R P BUE Bl 5 B
joint venture under PRC law. REBDRE-

# None of the statutory financial statements of these # FrB LS B A BIHAE I B 3R
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong KR RKEBRLKERZ
or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global B—REBEZ -
network.
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19.

20.

Avic

0\

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. WEB QTR (&)
(continued)
The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company ERINLEZREBETEFERTFE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally EENBRAEBEEFEETESS
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial DZARABIKB AR - EER A
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of HOEMHB AR EREBNE -
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
During the year, the Group disposed of Ontex Enterprises FR AEELEHET —XE2EWE
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, its subsidiaries, ‘A F]Ontex Enterprises Limited + &
and certain other subsidiaries. Further details of these MEBAR - UEETEMEEA
disposals are included in note 39 to the financial Al ZEHESHNFBHNIT
statements. HERMIFE39 ©
INVESTMENT IN A 20. HEZEEQARZKRE
JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B-=-F —_T——F
HK$ HK$
ET BT
Share of net assets HEBREFE 306,962,604 502,416,449
Goodwill on acquisition WEEFTEE 4 2 P2 7,744,607 7,744,607
314,707,211 510,161,056

The investment in a jointly-controlled entity represents
the Group’s right to enjoy certain economic benefits
derived from 69.4% (2011: 69.4%) equity interest in
CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. (“CATIC Siwei"”) held by third
parties. CATIC Siwei is registered as a co-operative
joint venture under the PRC law. The Group is not a
shareholder of CATIC Siwei.

HARAZERRAZREEAEEAE
FEHBUE=TRAZOGEMZE
ERARAR ([M@ER]) 69.4%
ZE——F:694%) REER 2
ETREMNS - MEERRIETE
EPEMAEELRE - NEEILF
7O 4 E R AR -
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INVESTMENT IN A
JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the rights to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to account
for these rights as investment in a jointly-controlled
entity using the equity method of accounting as at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

The above entity was not audited by Ernst & Young,
Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entity:

20.

HEEZEBRARIZRE (&)

EERA ERAEEEENEE
%69.4 % R 78 7 5 B R 2R AS 78 I 2=

- ERBO#ERNARIEER
TE - A IO 4 R R Y 4 i RR
ZISEEB B E S EIEGIRE - B
7 5% [ 0 A 2 o O 4 X 2 B 7S
&EL@@‘?% ﬁﬁEEMﬁ
BaAESEEEE  WRZF

——FRkRZFE——F+ZHA="1—
Bt ARRIIERARIZIRE -

AEBEEHIFHLKETRINLKE
RZA—REEX -

TSR B A 4 S R A 2 B
BHARNE ;

2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s SlhEE RN

assets and liabilities: BENGE:

Current assets mENEE 199,083 121,509
Non-current assets ERBEE 158,055 519,548
Current liabilities mEAaE (19,462) (25,586)
Non-current liabilities ERFBEE (30,713) (113,055)
Net assets EESE 306,963 502,416
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20. INVESTMENT IN A 20. HEZEEARZIRE (&)
JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s DG L FEERE QR 2 HE4E
results:
Revenue W zs 5,372 1,442
Gross profit EF 4,580 79
Other income HAa A 292,775 171,805
297,355 171,884
Other operating income/ Hipse g A
(expenses), net (M%) 8 1,319 (7,062)
Tax AL (68,930) (37,065)
Profit after tax MR B Rm A 229,744 127,757

Share of other comprehensive income of S5 HERZHEDT 2

the jointly-controlled entity Hith 2 E U A (296,679) (701,496)
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. BE QTR
Group Company
KEE FiUN|

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —FT——%F ZEBE--fF —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Share of net assets DEBEFE 254,575,980 161,816,951 = =
Goodwill on acquisition WERELY 78 48,375,555 40,969,018 - -

302,951,535 202,785,969 - =

BER - Ri# 12,250,000 53,243,122 - 41,048,000

Market value of listed shares D2 (& 199,097,835 144,423,300
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The loans to associates included in the Group's
current assets amounting to HK$12,250,000 (2011:
HK$12,195,122) are unsecured, bear interest at 6%
(2011: 6%) per annum and are repayable within one
year. In the prior year, the loans to an associate included
in the Group’s and the Company’s current assets
amounting to HK$41,048,000 were unsecured, bore
interest at 3.5% to 3.65% per annum and were settled
during the year.

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

21.

BENTER (B)

PREAEERDEEANZ M E
NA R 2 B3 A12,250,000% T
—F——4 :12,195,1228 L) b
ERIE . RFEFKeE (ZF — —
F:6E) fFERER—FANEE -
BEFE  BREEXNEBERARF
MBEEAZABEARIREZE
3X41,048,000/8 7t BB - L F
FEISEE365EFERERFR

f8iE -

TRMERTZFBOT

Percentage

Particulars of

Place of
incorporation/

of ownership
interest
attributable

Name issued shares held registration to the Group Principal activities
FEEEWL
EEdit) M BEERER
218 FERERTRAFE S BAt TEEK
CEIH Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 28.23 Operation of petroleum,
RIS HK$0.2 each &5 (2011: 28.23) compressed natural
TR0 2B T TimA% —T——F: gas and liquefied
28.23) petroleum gas

This is the associate of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

During the year, the Group subscribed for 343,865,000
new shares issued by CEIH at par of HK$0.2 per share
pursuant to an open offer for a total consideration,
before expense, of HK$68,773,000.

refuelling stations,
LED street lighting,
finance leasing and
trading of gas related
products

KeEAH - BERA
REBRIEARRINR
uh - LEDERE - BEM
EREEREIEME
]|

ERESRRIEREAFEXRA
ABAAEEMEEFEETZIRNZ
AEEBERT - EER M
HipBt 2 AR ER B ITTR

FAAEERE-—EAREERE
H AR (E68,773,000/8 7T (R
B KEAEERO2ETRERH
fh B3R 1% B35 77 2 343,865,0000% 37 A%

,f/\ °

< Avic ) 137



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMEIRERZR (FE) ARATF

Annual Report 2012
—E-FER

138

Notes to Financial Statements & 7 3R 3R ff 5

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+-A=+—H

21.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group's associates extracted from
their management accounts or financial statements:

21.

BENTER (B)

TRIMASEBRERRZHBKE
HBE  DRZAREZERRKE
KK

2012 2011

—E——F —F—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Assets BE 1,701,505 1,146,208
Liabilities afE (605,932) (363,719)
Revenues g 1,444,679 1,050,011
Profits/(losses) wH L (EE) (64,713) 2,749

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT
EC120

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group's
interest in 80% of the interest of AVIC International
("AVIC
substantial shareholder of the Company, in the net

Holding Corporation International”), a
income in relation to Project EC120 which was acquired
from AVIC International in 2002. Project EC120 is a
jointly-controlled operation established in October 1992
by AVIC International in co-operation with Eurocopter
S.A. and Singapore Aerospace Ltd., both independent
third parties, to develop, manufacture and globally
distribute the multi-purpose EC120 helicopters.

AVIC International’s net income derived from Project
EC120 is limited to AVIC International’s share of income,
net of all expenses, to be derived from its interest in
Project EC120 in relation to (i) the sale and production
of parts and spares of helicopters and profits accrued to
AVIC International from the sale of helicopters globally;
(ii) the recovery of non-recurring costs accrued to AVIC
International; (iii) commission income accrued to AVIC
International from the sale of helicopters by AVIC
International; and (iv) administrative income accrued to
AVIC International from the operations of Project EC120.

22.

EC120 BB v I EE

EHRIEAEBRNR T -FEHRHAD
A2 EEEIRAE P R ZE TR
BIERAERAT ([HAEEL) P
ZEC12038 B JE&t 2 3 A Z280%
Ean s E@REE -ECI2088 &
—HEHR—NANLZ=ZF+AA+MmEA
B2 B2 Y8 37 85 = HEurocopter S.A.K
Singapore Aerospace Ltd.fpkiz 2 3
EESITEE - ZEARBERLIER
BERE - BE R IREHEC1208
R ERGEEA M -

FRBERRREEC12018 B ZSF WA -
FRANFR BB BEFEEC 12078 B s AT EE
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FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT 22. EC120EBE 2 B EE

EC120 (continued)

As the investment represents a contractual right to
receive cash in the future from another enterprise,
the investment has been classified as a non-current
available-for-sale financial asset and stated at cost less
any impairment losses. This investment is stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are
of the opinion that its fair value could not be measured
reliably.

As at 31 December 2012, the directors had made a full
provision for impairment of the value of the financial
asset.

The cost less accumulated impairment losses of the
financial asset is analysed as follows:

(&

HRZEAREREARES —HKEE
WER & Z BN - BRLZIRE
ESBRRIRBDAIHLENRBE
I B ARBEIRER RS
Bk o RIREURARERETE
B RAERFEMGT ZHES
R BRESRABEURFEER
FE -

N—ZE——FE+=-_pA=+—H" =
EEMZEVNKEECEBEAEL R
EUR BB -

MBEEZRARBRBEREBIRZ
DHTEAT -

Group

AEH

HK$

T

Cost: AR
At 31 December 2011, 1 January R-_E——F+_-_A=+—8 -
2012 and 31 December 2012 —E——F—A—HK

—E-—F+-A=+—H 39,759,462

Accumulated impairment: RIERE :
At 31 December 2011, 1 January

2012 and 31 December 2012

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H"
—E-F-H-HK
—F—H+ZA=t+—H

(39,759,462)

Carrying amount: BRMEIE :
At 31 December 2011 and 31

December 2012

RZEBE——F+ZA=+—HBK
—E--H+=-A=+—H -
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 23. AHEENRE
INVESTMENTS
Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f ZT—% B ZZT——F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B BT B BT
Listed investment in N E R E) ETH
Mainland China, at fair BE BATE
value (note (a)) (Hiiz(a)) 144,518,380 529,892,638 - =
Unlisted investments, FEEMIRE
at fair value: BRATE
CEIH Bond (note (b)) BRI G
(Ht5Emb)) 44,386,771 = = =
Club debentures SHES 5,070,300 5,012,008 2,680,300 2,680,300
193,975,451 534,904,646 2,680,300 2,680,300
Notes: W
(a) During the year, a fair value loss of HK$124,669,666 (a) FRN ZEREZATEEE

(2011: HK$929,298,296) in respect of this investment
was recognised in other comprehensive income for the
year.

During the year, certain of this investment was disposed
of and gross fair value gains of HK$247,950,880
(2011: HK$331,046,551) was reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
together with the relevant expenses, a net gain on
disposal of HK$223,313,135 (2011: HK$331,046,551)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year.

The total income tax credit amounting to

HK$93,155,136 (2011: HK$332,432,600) was credited
to other comprehensive income for the year.

140
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929,298,296/87C) JIRNAFE 2
Hib 2 mEUE AR ©

FR - BEREWBOHEE - A
SE{EEFE247,950,880/ 7T (—
T — — 4 : 331,046,551/ JT)
BRI HEERESAREEEN
¥ BREEER  RAFE
2B WRERERLE ZFFE
223,313,1358 L (Z&E——%F ¢
331,046,551 7T) °
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 23. AHHENKRE (&)

INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

On 6 March 2012, CEIH issued Convertible Bond with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$51,775,872 to
the Group as detailed in note 13(a) to the financial
statements. The Convertible Bond bears interest at 2%
per annum, is convertible into 220,322,859 ordinary
shares of CEIH at HK$0.235 per share (subject to
adjustment upon the change in capital structure of
CEIH) and will mature in three years from the date of
the issuance of the Convertible Bond.

The Convertible Bond is a hybrid instrument that
includes a non-derivative host contract and an
embedded derivative. The non-derivative host contract,
representing the bond component (the “CEIH Bond”),
has been designated as an available-for-sale investment.
The embedded derivative, being a derivative financial
instrument (the “Embedded Derivative Asset”),
represents the conversion option which allows the
Group to convert the Convertible Bond into ordinary
shares of CEIH at an established conversion rate (i.e.,
HK$0.235 per share) before the maturity date of the
Convertible Bond.

As at 6 March 2012, the fair values of the CEIH
Bond and the Embedded Derivative Asset were
stated at HK$41,257,941 and HK$21,686,299 (note
28), respectively, based on a valuation performed
by independent professionally qualified valuer. As
at 31 December 2012, the fair values of the CEIH
Bond and the Embedded Derivative Asset are stated
at HK$44,386,771 and HK$9,014,631 (note 28),
respectively, based on a valuation performed by
independent professionally qualified valuer, and a fair
value gain of HK$3,128,830 in respect of CEIH Bond
was recognised as other comprehensive income for the
year while a fair value loss of HK$12,671,668 in respect
of the Embedded Derivative Asset was recognised in the
consolidated income statement (note 28).

In the prior year, a fair value gain of HK$13,961,927 in
respect of conversion of certain convertible bonds issued
by CEIH was reclassified from other comprehensive
income to the consolidated income statement for that
year.

Biat

(b)

(%)

RZTE—Z—ZF=A~H  #H
BERNAEBBRTHELASES
51,775,872 L 2 Al A IR & -
BN IEREMTE13() o 7]
MREHZFF K R2E S
A LA R%0.235/%8 7T (% B e &
RIEEAREZEH T URAE)
it 5 R B IR 1% 2220,322,859
Bz LA - WAE R AR E S
BITERT=F2IH -

ARREFABIEFTEIAEE
BHRBMARTETAZEAT
B ETETAFANREKRES
B ([PRERIEES])  BEWiE
EAIHEENRE - R ARXLT
ETADNMESBIA (TRAR
PTHEEE]  REAFEREER
AI AR 5 25 A R iR RE g ia
& (A& R%0.235/8 1) #5 7] %
EHFERATHERIEZ LB
HRARR EARE -

R-ZZT——F=A8 FERER
BEFERBRARTEEEZ AT
BEREBYEXESERGHEME
T2 M ESNES B /41,257,941
B 7T }21,686,29978 TT (At it
28) e RZE—ZF+=ZA=+
— A PEREEHFRBRARLT
HEEEZATFERBBIZES
BIRHEMETZEEIED R
£44,386,7717% JU }9,014,631
BT (K it28)  HEBIRKREFH
2 N F{EF 3,128,830 LB
REANERAEMEE R ZE R
RARTEEEZAFEER
12,671,668 T E N A W= TR
R (KaE28) °

BEFE  BRPFRKETZ
ETAHRERESFZAFENE
13,961,927 tEe i E M = |
WaBMoBEEZFzEeka
=
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23.

24.

Avic

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (continued)

During the year, the net loss in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$121,540,836
(2011: HK$929,298,296).

The fair values of certain of the unlisted available-for-sale
investments have been estimated using valuation
technigues based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market price or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows including expected future dividends,
risk-free rate and the credit spread of the underlying
shares. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation techniques, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

23.

AHHENRE (&)

FR REMEZEAREERZASE
B EHENKREZEBBTFER
121,540,836/ T (=Z & — — & :
929,298,296/87T) °

ETHLMAHRKENREZRF
B 757 A A ERMRERR G
Ko MmZEBRRIIAATBREMISE

RAEREXR - RHERAESTYH
BHRARKRAESRE  BREAHRE

BB ERERFENABERNEE
ZHEEHELMGEE - EFHE - UK
EERMABERE S W HAR AR

ARG ZEHATERRAMRE
Yoz R eE 2 HARE A FER B B

B HARBERRZZEERE
8 o

INVENTORIES FE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——fF
HKS$ HK$
ET BT
Raw materials R 2,043,380 1,335,107
Finished goods RIRK 733,156 3,205,346
2,776,536 4,540,453
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25. EWESRARERE

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—F--F —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade and bills receivables FEWWE ZERNRERE 14,734,812 10,965,384
Impairment NERIE] (919,620) -
13,815,192 10,965,384

The Group'’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally one month, extending up to two months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEEEREFZEEGRERR
BRI EFEPKRINIEP—K
FERMNR - EEH KRR —
A BREIBRFPRZEHEM
@A -BUEFPFHRAEZRNEER
B AKBEBKRERBE 2 EREE

RERBBEE BEESETHR
Eﬂ‘i@ﬁlﬂmﬁﬁ% o BRI LR AR
BzRBESERRERIREX
EDHZEFHNEE AN ES
REEETRR AKELERE
FEW B 5 IR R 2 RE R 35 B (A 1K 4
mAkEMEERE - BKRE 5K
WESEFE o

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at RIEBRR BRESERRRR
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice REZHHARMBRBEZREDT
date and net of provisions, is as follows: mn
Group
rEH
2012 2011
=F-=F =—F—F
HK$ HK$
Er T
Current BN HA 11,621,215 4,886,884
31 to 60 days 31260H 559,727 1,461,435
61 to 90 days 61290H - 1,157,676
Over 90 days 90H A E 1,634,250 3,459,389
13,815,192 10,965,384
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25. BWEZRIRKRRRE (77)

(continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of the
trade and bills receivables are as follows:

FEIKE 50 5% R R (E
BT -

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—B-—-F —ZT——F
HK$ HK$
B BT
At 1 January n—A—H - 1,574,985
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMER A - (1,671,021)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EERREEE (Fi76) 919,620 -
Exchange realignment M H R - 96,036
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8 919,620 -

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
and bills receivables was a provision for individually
impaired trade and bills receivables of HK$919,620
(2011: Nil) with the same carrying amount before
provision. The individually impaired trade and bills
receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties or were in default in principal payment and
only a portion of the receivables was expected to be
recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

AALBERESERRERZR
BERERERENREZEKE S
R R 2 ##5919,620/%8 7T (=
T——F: &) ARG ZEEE
HE - BRREEKE SRR R
SHREAMBMERESHERAE M
RZBEFHEB BBEIPEBNZZ
FEYBR AT T Uk [El o

AERBER K ARBEZ ERE
SRR RBBEZREDNMAT -

Group

rEE
2012 2011
-5 —T %
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired AR EEA N R B 12,180,942 6,348,319
Less than 1 month past due wmE LR —{EA - 1,157,676
1 to 3 months past due BmA—==EA 1,634,250 3,459,389
13,815,192 10,965,384
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for which
there is no recent history of default.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

LOAN TO A RELATED COMPANY

The loan to a related company represents a loan to Peace
Map, an associate of a jointly-controlled entity of the
Group, which is unsecured, bears interest at 6% (2011:
6.31%) per annum and is repayable within one year.

Particulars of the amount due from a related company
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance are as follows:

25.

26.

BWEZRRERE (&)

AR 78 R 7 RO B 2 B W B ok B AR
ERLEFPER ZBEEFPER
ERESL -

%
i

B 780 H HE 1) AR ORK B2 18 U B 3 B AR
ZHRAKERARIBEREZE
YEFPEM - REBELR AR
AEERAR BEANZLERE
HEFRRERS FEELEHE
EREPHRERBDKREST 2
Ym e

mEE R RRENERK
FEERRRENERERANEER
HEZEEQRTZBERTRT B R
H2ER ZERREER  BF
M E6E (ZF——F:631F) 7
BRER—FNEE -

RBEFBRAROIE161BIRHEZ
FEW BB R R IR IS EIN T

Group
AEE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 December during 1 January
2012 the year 2012
—E-—F FARAKS T—F
+=HA=+—H AMEEDHE —AR—H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Peace Map A NE 18,750,000 18,750,000 18,292,683
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

27. ERIE - e R HME

OTHER RECEIVABLES W B FK
Group Company
N | KAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f —"T——% ZB-Zf _"T——F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Prepayments BNHE 5,464,362 2,326,457 3,088,644 1,257,766
Deposits and other BE REA YRR
receivables 26,996,973 303,617,849 10,115,855 215,875,504
Deposit paid for acquisition  WEMEMS A 2E S
of a property 40,000,000 - - -
72,461,335 305,944,306 13,204,499 217,133,270
Less: non-current portion B IERENER 1 (40,000,000) = - -
Current portion mENE D 32,461,335 305,944,306 13,204,499 217,133,270

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

The financial assets included in the above balances

related to receivables for which there is no recent history

of default.

Included in the above assets is a deposit paid for

acquisition of a property located in Zhejiang, the PRC,
of RMB32,000,000, approximately HK$40,000,000. As
the Group has not yet obtained the property ownership

certificate, the amount was recorded as a deposit.

In the prior year, included in other receivables was a
receivable of HK$184,000,000 arising from the Group’s
disposal of certain subsidiaries which was secured and

has been settled in the current year. Details of the terms

of this other receivable and the pledge are disclosed in

note 39 to the financial statements.
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28.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

TEEMTIA

INSTRUMENT
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
HKS HK$
BT T
Asset: BE
Embedded Derivative Asset MARTEEE 9,014,631 =

The Group's derivative financial instrument is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis. Any fair value gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The Embedded Derivative Asset represents the derivative
embedded in the Convertible Bond as detailed in note
23(b) to the financial statements. As of 6 March 2012
(the issue date of the Convertible Bond), the fair
value of the Embedded Derivative Asset was stated
at HK$21,686,299 based on a valuation performed
by independent professionally qualified valuer. As at
31 December 2012, the fair value of the Embedded
Derivative Asset was stated at HK$9,014,631 based on
a valuation performed by independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$12,671,668
in respect of the Embedded Derivative Asset was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the derivative financial instrument has
been estimated using valuation techniques based on
assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believe that the estimated fair value resulting from
the valuation technique, which is recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related change in fair value, which is recorded in the
consolidated income statement, are reasonable, and that
they are the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

AEBzTESR T ADNERFE
EREEE  ERBFBRIAFEEE
B - EA A FEMNEREBRGR
FeRERARER -

RARPTEBEER R AR RRE
FZUTETE  FBEHRIBH@mE
MiaE23b)e R=ZFE—=—F=Z A~
B(AIH®|EBREHFZETH) AR
MEBEZAFERBEBLEE
EEREEMETZHBENNER
21,686,299 L M ZF — Z 4
+—A=+—8 Z#AXTEELE
ZAFEREBIEXSERME
B i 17 2 (5 1B 5 {8 A9,014,6317
T MARTEEEZAFEEIE
12,671,668/ 7L B 4R & U 25 3% 1

7
e

TEEMTAZAFEENAMGE
BRMRBHRRMGEETHE > MEER
REABABEMSERKERIEX
o MEAERFHMER  BER
HAESRENRBRAESF ZKE - &
EHREEABERNEHMERS
MR ER AR A AFE K
REFBWGERARZBRERFE
EPHEBAE  WAREHRZR
REEE -
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND A

TIME DEPOSIT

29. BeRkBELEE BER
ERERREREFR

Group Company
r5E LN
2012 2011 2012 2011
~F--% %% Z®B--fF T F
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Time deposits ERER 517,007,219 538,566,347 - 10,000,000
Less: Pledged short term B RERRTEEnT
time deposits for short DA AR 2 52 A e HA
term banking facilities TR (Hrzt33() i)
(note 33(a)(iii)) (6,625,000) (365,854) - -
A time deposit with NEREREIEE
original maturity of more BR=EA
than three months when TEHEX
acquired - (164,634,146) - =
510,382,219 373,566,347 - 10,000,000
Cash and bank balances He Rik{T6E7 514,407,337 257,741,671 385,734,911 169,692,013
Cash and cash equivalents ReLkReEE 1,024,789,556 631,308,018 385,734,911 179,692,013
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND A
TIME DEPOSIT (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances and the time deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$639,951,712 (2011: HK$509,180,466). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
term of repayment.

29.

30.

RekBReFEE 2K
AEMERREHER
(&

RIERR - AEBEUAARE (A
RE]) fHEZRS RIBTETFRE
H 77 3K &639,951,712%8 T (= &
— — % :509,180,466/8 7T) - AR
BEAAERERSEME AW
B35 B A b 2 SN B 3R R B R A
fE - SERNEEERE  A&E
AEREREREINE L BEL 2
RITHARBHBLASHEMER

ROTFEREFERTERNKRGFE
BB A REE o RFARKEE A
RAEHFR BFENF—BE—F
ETRMENEREHRFR UK
BRARMERFERMERGE - R1T
A& 17 NOE B E S9 T7 ORI Hl 4
RESE BEBIBEZRTT -

e — XM B2 Rz Ik
e

ZHEREEAR 2EREBEEE
B -
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31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 31. BENEZRIRKRRE
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at RBEHR BNESERRERE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice RERZAMBZERESTAT ¢

date, is as follows:

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E——F —F——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Current BN ER 37,159,244 7,279,367
31 to 60 days 31£260H 1,356,601 5,778,673
61 to 90 days 61290H 918,980 4,906,328
Over 90 days 90H I E 4,389,129 6,635,899

43,823,954 24,600,267

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ZERNESERDI T ER—R
normally settled on 90-day terms. 90 R BARRIBIE ©

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HwENFERETTEH

Group Company
rEE ¥ N

2012 2011 2012 2011
=B-=F —F-F =ZB-=fF T F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Other payables H A 50IE 12,605,960 152,721,592 1,335,993 =
Accruals FEFTE A 5,060,479 14,957,330 5,060,479 14,957,330

17,666,439 167,678,922 6,396,472 14,957,330

Other payables are interest-free and have an average HiERRIE R B R TFHERA
term of three months. =f@A -
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33. ;tE4RITER

BORROWINGS
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$  rate (%)  Maturity HK$
ER R
F=(%) FHA BT FI2(%) ZIEH JETT
Bank loans - secured RITER — KA 6.88 - 8.1 2013 14,625,000 5.9-7.87 2012 37,073,171
Notes: Hiat -

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s banking facilities
were secured by:

(i) pledges of certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with an aggregate net book value
of approximately HK$4,111,671 (2011:
HK$3,964,146) (note 15);

(i) pledges of the Group's leasehold land with
an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$3,178,592 (2011: HK$3,205,171) (note 16);

(iii) pledges of certain of the Group’s short term
time deposits amounting to HK$6,625,000
(2011: HK$365,854) (note 29); and

(iv) pledges of certain properties owned by a
director of a subsidiary, his spouse, his spouse’s
family member and his acquaintance.

As at 31 December 2012, a director of a subsidiary,
the spouse of the director, the spouse’s acquaintances
and the companies controlled by the acquaintances
have guaranteed repayment of certain of the Group's
bank borrowings amounting to HK$5,000,000 (2011:
HK$30,487,805).

All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

(a) R=ZF——F+=-_A=+—8"
AEBMZBITEEATHSEAE
BER

(i) EHAEBEREmFERL
%8 494,111,671 T (=
T — —F 13,964,146/
L) ZETFLHREF
(H1e15)

iy HERAKEEREDFER
 #93,178,5927% 7T (=

T — — 4 :3,205,171
L) 2E L (F 7
16) :

(iii) KB A £ B A XK
6,625,000/ T (= & —
— £ : 365,854/ L) 2
ETREEHER (Kt
29) + &

vy HR-—RHHBERRZE
= OHES - HEBZK
BB RANTER 25
THE -

RZTE—=F+=—A=+—H"
—EHBRARCESREZESY
B ZEBZAARBZE
RAABEH ZRARRAER B
5,000,000/ ;L (= T — — & -
30,487,805 0) 2 & FR1ITE
R EERBER -

(b) FARTEEOUAREES -
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34.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

34, EIERIE
AEBELERBEEENFRNZED

T -

BEEBEBEEE
Group
A
Revaluation
of property,
plant and
equipment Revaluation of
and prepaid  an available-
land lease for-sale  Withholding
payment investment taxes Total
EfME -
BENRER Bt
AL HHER HERE stk &t
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—H—H 9,157,547 459,766,669 2,700,000 471,624,216
Deferred tax charged ERMBYREREK L
to the income statement BERIE (K2 10)
during the year (note 10) 739,003 - 46,747 785,750
Deferred tax credited to other FRzAHEMEE
comprehensive income Was 2 BRERRIR
during the year — (332,432,600) - (332,432,600)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RHB AR
(note 38) (Hii£38) 1,226,591 - - 1,226,591
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(note 39) (B1i£39) (9,896,550) - (2,764,706)  (12,661,256)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% - - 17,959 17,959
Gross deferred tax liabilities R ZT——4F
at 31 December 2011 and TZA=+-HK
1 January 2012 S
ZEEVBAERE 1,226,591 127,334,069 - 128,560,660
Deferred tax credited to the  ERF AR R 2
income statement BIERR (Wiz10)
during the year (note 10) (122,851) - - (122,851)
Deferred tax credited to other ERFAEMEE
comprehensive income Wigs 2 BRFRIR
during the year - (93,155,136) - (93,155,136)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R=F—=f
at 31 December 2012 +=ZR=+-H
ZEEHERGFASE 1,103,740 34,178,933 - 35,282,673
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group had aggregate
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2011: HK$15,456,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in the companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has
become effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates range
from 5% to 10%. The Group was therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2012, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
jointly-controlled entity and associates established in
Mainland China.
is not probable that the jointly-controlled entity and

In the opinion of the directors, it

associates will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in a jointly-controlled
entity and associates in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$240,099,902 at 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$136,892,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

34.

Lﬁﬁlﬁ (/,,g

R-EBE——F+=-_A=+—80" ' &~
EBEEBELEZATESEY
415,456,000 7T (Z & — — F ¢

15,456,000/ JT) » A £ R 5 A 1
HEEBE BB AR Z R RERT &

MemRZEBEREREHLR
BERZQF MAYTRAAEE
R m A AHBATRER - &
I SR SRR AE L IR B EE

BEPBEEEMERE - EREX
iz%§¢%m%H&§%gﬂz

fE B A I10%TEFNT » 3Z R TR
ZETEN\F-—A—HEBEKR EA
RZZEZ+LF+ZA=+—H#%EZ
WS o fisi B ERHNEI 3% & 2 2 Rl
ERETBRKIBE - KA RARK
ZTENBE - AEEME - @A
FHREES%ZE10% - NEBRAMAS
ERERIZHBARRE T
NF—A—BREEAZWE DI
Z IR B ASETEIEL o

RZTE—=—F+-A=+—H8" I
EAEBEEFRH AL Z HEF
%% a] R H & N A 2 R EE U &
BRELEHEBE -BFERR ZFH
FREZEEARRBEERARTEENR
BRDEKZERDS - RZT—=F
+:ﬂ—+*5'ﬁ$%%$lm
Mo HRAZEREATRBE AR ZE
ﬁﬁ-ZELmEEEZ&h#%
& £ 495240,099,9028 T (ZZF —
—4F 1 136,892,000 7T) °

AR A [7) A BRI 8% P
AFTSTHER -

830 B I 7

&
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SHARE CAPITAL 35. IR
Shares
& 2
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 4% & i T &
of HK$0.10 each 0.108 T2 L@k 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000

EEITRER -
4,661,397,0005%

Issued and fully paid:
4,661,397,000
(2011: 4,680,851,000) ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each

(ZZ——1% : 4,680,851,0000%)
FREE0. 108 T2 T @R

466,139,700 468,085,100

During the year, the Company repurchased a total
of 30,070,000 shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
at prices ranging from HK$0.227 to HK$0.255 per
share for an aggregate consideration with the relevant
expenses totalling HK$7,288,499. The relevant share
certificates in respect of the 19,454,000 repurchased
shares had been duly cancelled as at 31 December
2012. The relevant share certificates in respect of
the remaining 10,616,000 repurchased shares were
duly cancelled subsequent to the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of the
19,454,000 shares of HK$1,945,400 and the premium
paid of HK$2,712,434 on the repurchase was charged
against the share premium account. The amount paid of
HK$2,630,665 for the remaining 10,616,000 shares was
debited to the treasury shares reserve as at 31 December
2012 which was subsequently released as reduction of
issued share capital of HK$1,061,600 and share premium
account of HK$1,569,065 upon cancellation of the
related share certificates.

FARN ARABAFR0227ETTE
0.255B T2 BREBEH & X
SHBRAR ([BRXA]) BEH*
30,070,000f N A A & 1n + BB
EREBEERA 7,288,499 T -
19,454,000% B f& B i 17 2 48 B8 ix
EER_E——-—F+=-_A=+—H
EXFESE - 2 210,616,0000% E
BERMDAEEREENRE R
FRFH Al AAE 2B 8T
fi% 7N 2 #219,454,0000% I 17 2 T &
1,945,400/ 7T R - i B [B] By BT 52
N2 % (82,712,434 8 T2 B R M
wm B AR IR - 2T 210,616,000
I Bt 2 B 7 5% 882,630,665 JT
ER-ZE—Z—F+=-HA=+—H
BETEGEROEBT LN
BEAEBHERER - HRE ET
g 751,061,600/ 7T & % 17 & B AR
1,569,065/8 L I 1B 7% [ 17 AR 17 R 1
FRER ©
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

In the prior year, the Company repurchased a
total of 73,546,000 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange at prices ranging from HK$0.25 to
HK$0.345 per share for an aggregate consideration
of HK$25,086,550. All the relevant share certificates
in respect of the repurchased shares had been duly
cancelled as at 31 December 2011. Accordingly, the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of these shares of HK$7,354,600 and the
premium paid of HK$17,731,950 on the repurchase was
charged against the share premium account.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 13 May 2003,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Since the adoption of
the Scheme, no options have been granted thereunder.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are individuals
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including any
executive or non-executive directors thereof.

3. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme must not exceed 10% of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of approval of the Scheme. The Company may
refresh this 10% limit at any time subject to
prior approval by its shareholders in a general
meeting. The overall limit on the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company at any time.
No options may be granted if this will result in
such limit being exceeded.

35.

36.

R (&

BEFE - AREAFA0.25F T
FE0345B L2 EREBRAERES
$£73,546,00008 K R A B fn » B R
& 425,086,550/ 7T ° FT A & & @
B zHBRZER T ——F+
“A=t+—BEAXFHE - At - &
ARIBEETRADEZERND 2E
87,354,600/ ST HIB + M & Bl B AT
Sz % 817,731,950 T 2 B X
15m (B AR 0Bk o

BRESTE

E-ZT=FRA+=AFTZR
RBEXREGL ARARAHT B
Bergat &l ([zat8l))  EEB R
RRSAKERBE ZKNEL AR
ZEEBRSEE - BRMZATEIA
K W ERIE AT IR E R BB
o

ZaTEl 2 EBIRREIE

1. ZAtElEERSEERHEE
B

2. ZatBlz2BEBARA L
HEMMBRARIZEER &
R B R ZEA - EP
BREERAITIIATES -

3. HITEREZEME2E
B EmEIT 2 R B
TEHBARZTEBRAEH
ARARIEBEITRA 210% °
KRARIAIFER B #Z10% L
R HEEBRENBRRERS
EExE - AITEREZ
BT 2 EBE R TTE B
EmEITIRG B EERS
IR NEBBEMEREALRRD
RIBEBITIRA Z230% - 4%
TR ESEIEBRER L
IR A e R -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

4. The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) granted under the
Scheme in any 12-month period immediately
preceding any proposed date of grant of option
to each participant must not exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue as at the
proposed grant date.

5. Options may be exercised at any time during
a period of 10 years commencing on the date
falling three to six months after the date of grant.

6. A grant of an option must be accepted within
28 days from the date of grant together with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00.

7. The exercise price of an option to subscribe for
shares granted pursuant to the Scheme shall be
the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

() the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 13 May
2003 and thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and accepted
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of
approval of these financial statements, there were no
share options outstanding.

36. BRESTE (&)

4. TEE {35 i AR 4 B 5
AT+ — 1@ A B E 1T E R IE
BT 2 S EARE (TR E
17fF ~ BEaEsEsmARTTE) M
ME2HEEFHTREETZ
BB TEEBARGR
REZBRE RS D BTR
AK1% o

5. BREAARNEROBHR=%
NE A+ FRBERTTE -

6. B HEZAN K L B Ei1228H
NEER WA TARE
IE1.00/8 7T °

7. REBEZ A SR AL A H R
Bz BREZITEEAR
Mlz&mE :

() BOERLEH (AR
EXRA) B BN
FRMERZWHE

by BOERLBHARE
EEXARBZME
B#ER2FHED
B: R

(0 ARBRHEE -

8. ZAtB M —TT=FA A+
ZHEFTERER MR
bt +FHERA SR H R
B W ARITERRAED A
17 -

BERYEETHBEAZTAERENK
RERKE EREZER -

R E MR R R B 75 e R L 8
B W ARTTE 2 B
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37. RESERVES 37. #fE

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 48 to 51 of this
annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of
certain subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned
enterprises in Mainland China and the relevant
PRC Company Law, the subsidiaries shall make
an allocation from their profit after tax at the
rate of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve
fund, until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation
is not less than 25% of the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve will
be reclassified to the retained profits upon the
disposal of the subsidiaries.

(a)

AEH
AEBAFERBAFEZ
HEARBEEEDHIN AT
WEASH ZFS1B 2 A FE
HEBRNA o

RIEETRFBEKRENLINE
CETALEZHBARZ
REERNARETBERQRA
Bl ZEME AR AR R
& g M Z210%% = & E
NEL BHEFRAREBEER
ZEMBRAAEMERZ
50% ° &R {00AE N TE & Al B
ARZEMBRARZEME
Ko MEREERCERZHBT
BB LRZEN B QR E
MERZ25% ° AT EER
ZEMBARMEERKE
MOBEBFRAM -

(b) Company (b) ZA2AF
Share Treasury
premium shares Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
R EER ERRH EONCA BREaEA CH)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT AT AT
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——%—F—H 193,970,166 = 5243300 30,162,549 229,376,015
Total comprehensive income R E W5
for the year - - - 165,734,491 165,734,491
Repurchase of shares BERD (H#35)
(note 35) (17,731,950) - - - (17,731,950)
At 31 December 2011 and  R=Z——F+-f=+—H
1 January 2012 k=E--%-F-H 176,238,216 = 5,243,300 195,897,040 377,378,556
Total comprehensive income N2 E R £
for the year - - - (15,588,507) (15,588,507
Repurchase of shares BRRY (#735)
(note 35) (2,712,434)  (2,630,665) - - (5,343,099)
At31December 2012 W=B-=F+=A=+—H 173525782 (2,630,665 5243300 180,308,533 356,446,950

&
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37.

38.
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RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the consolidated net
asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited
on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued
share capital was acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation, over the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
in consideration for such acquisition, net of
accumulated losses of the Company set off in
the prior years. Under the Companies Act of
1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the
Company is distributable to shareholders under
certain circumstances.

The Company’s share premium account of
HK$173,525,782 (2011: HK$176,238,216) as
at 31 December 2012 may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 28 December 2011, the Group acquired a 51%
interest in Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu from Mr. Wu
Xiaogang (“Mr. Wu"), a third party independent of
the Company. Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu is engaged in
the production and distribution of knitting and textile
products, knitted fabrics and clothing in Zhejiang
Province, the PRC. The acquisition was considered
as a good opportunity for the Group to invest in
other business with an aim to diversify the Group’s
source of revenue and to increase shareholders’
value. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,536,585) was paid in cash on 28 December 2011.

The Group had elected to measure the non-controlling

interest in Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of Zhejiang

Dongyang Jinniu’s identifiable net assets.

37.

38.

it (2
(b) AAF(#)

KRB 2 BARBBAR T
BEEEEAZHER—N
n—F+—HA=Z+HEA
Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.)
Limited% & 2 2 1T AR AN B -
Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.)
Limitedz 47 & B E #EHEE
AATHERWEBREMET
ZBRHEE R WEH
BRRBEFEEIEZARAF
ZEtEE - RBAREAQT
E—NN— KRB Z#A
BEEE THELTAIH5IK
TERE -

AKRARRZE—ZF+=
A=+—BzRBRHh&aER
173,525,782 L (=& ——
% : 176,238,216 7T) Al LA
BRABRFADIK

EBEHt
NZE——F+-_A=-+N\B &K
EEEARRZBYE=FRER
ETREE]D) KB IRES
F251%HE - AT RBEFR S
B IEREHBRSBR  SHE
ERERENEERDHE - ZUHE
EEEREAEEREEMERIAU
L LA S B ERRRIRFARE
BEZE® - ZWEEEZWER
{& /7,000,000t A R (HHER Y
8,536,585 L) BT ——%F
+ZA=+NBUBREX -

AEECEREIFTRER RGN
TRB A #AFEEZ O
ENMIRG T Z IR ER -
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BUSINESS COMBINATION
(continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

38.

REBaot (&

KRB B H - AT REG S 4 7 # 5

Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu as at the date of acquisition BERBBZAFENT :
are as follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
WS R T R
ZNFE
Notes HK$
Hiit BT
Property, plant and equipment ME - MEMKE 15 19,331,133
Prepaid land lease payments TET LA E R 16 3,205,171
Intangible asset mEE 18 1,140,980
Inventories 7&8 4,540,453
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZERRERE 10,965,384
Prepayments, deposits and other TRRIR « e REAM
receivables JE W BR K 42,678,391
Pledged time deposits BT E i1 5K 365,854
Cash and cash equivalents RENBEEEE 3,598,718
Due to a non-controlling shareholder BN —RWERARZ
of a subsidiary FEERR AR R (94,895)
Trade and bills payables R E SRR RER (23,371,666)
Tax payable P 718 (400,082)
Other payables and accruals HAthpe /I8 R EETE A (15,144,232)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER (37,073,171)
Deferred tax liabilities REHESE 34 (1,226,591)
Total identifiable net assets RAFEYIER 2 ATH5
at fair value FEERTE 8,515,447
Non-controlling interests IR R (4,172,569)
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEE ZEmE 17 4,193,707
Satisfied by cash PAR & &~ 8,536,585

The fair values of the trade and bills receivables and
other receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted
to HK$10,965,384 and HK$41,801,610, respectively.
The gross contractual amounts of the trade and bills
receivables and other receivables were HK$15,179,545
and HK$43,716,244, respectively, of which trade and
bills receivables of HK$4,214,161 and other receivables
of HK$1,914,634 were expected to be uncollectible.

RWEAH BRESEAEREER
MEMERER 2 AFEES A
10,965,384%8 7T 41,801,610 T °
FEWE 5 BRI R E A U AR
ZIBARNESEEDRAE15,179,545%8 7T
43,716,244 7T + H 4,214,161
BLTCEBRESIEREERR
1,914,634/ 7T 2 H th & Y HR 578 Bf
R e o

&
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BUSINESS COMBINATION 38. XKEHt (&2
(continued)
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,486,964 AEERLBEWEEETXHEAR
for this acquisition. These transaction costs had been 1,486,964 70 - ZER HHNALE T
expensed and were included in administrative expenses WA ABEZZE——F+=A
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended T+ —HIEFEHFERERZITH
31 December 2011. ERERNA -
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition WEEMB AR 2R RESTAT
of a subsidiary is as follows:
HK$
BT
Cash consideration HERKE (8,536,585)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEEsReRREEMR 3,598,718
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents SIARE R 2R EREZ
included in cash flows from investing activities BHeMBESEERLE R (4,937,867)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included SIAREEB 2 HERE L
in cash flows from operating activities W HE 2 X Z AN (1,486,964)
(6,424,831)

Since the acquisition, no contribution from Zhejiang
Dongyang Jinniu to the Group’s revenue and to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2011 was noted.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year ended 31 December 2011, the revenue from
continuing operations of the Group and the profit of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 would
have been HK$110,895,968 and HK$477,384,565,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, Mr. Wu and his
spouse, Ms. Du Jianping (“Ms. Du”), have provided (i)
a pledge of 49% equity interest in Zhejiang Dongyang
Jinniu held by Mr. Wu; (ii) a pledge of 30% equity
interest in RARREKERZAE held by Ms. Du;
and (iii) a mortgage undertaking in respect of three
properties situated at Dongyang City, Zhejiang Province
jointly or separately owned by Mr. Wu and/or Ms. Du, as
securities to the Group in respect of the other receivables
held by Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu. In addition, Mr. Wu
also provided guarantee to the Group that Mr. Wu will
bear the loss, if any, arising from financial guarantees
provided by the Group to certain companies controlled
by acquaintances of Mr. Wu.

IBWE 2% MTRBEFHE A
EEHE_ZT——F+_A=1+—
BIEFEZWE REE R I EE
R E R ©

MEEHREE-_T—F+=A
S+ BULEFEZEFEVIELELE
AlAEBEREBEE_ZE——F+=
A=+ BLEFECHERLEX
BRBRERZFERFNED A
110,895,968/ 7T [ 477,384,565/%8
5T o

RZEBE——FRZZT—ZF+=H8
=+—B REERERBHEYF
wE (&t ]) BT RE &4
FriEMmERERAALEE)ERR
T EFTE T RG &4 249% A&
B (VERt LB REBR
BIXER DT Z30%W AR &
(INVERREER Rt HRK
BREBEAEZURANIEREM 2=
BEYE - W REETAAEER
RE RELEBARERAEERR %
EZANFTEGZE T A IREH
BERMELEZEBKR (BF) -
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEMEAT
Details of the disposal are as follows: k=== =y
2012 2011
—E-CF —F——F
Notes HK$ HK$
Hist BT BT
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: EHECEE
(BfR) 3E:
Goodwill EES 17 - 30,493,201
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BRE MR 15 50,595 273,731,616
Prepaid land lease payments BT AER 16 - 29,884,137
Inventories FE - 10,716,822
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR ERE - 46,863,260
Tax recoverable AU EIF I = 3,532,666
Prepayments, deposits and BARIE - ke kEft
other receivables [ A&RE 2,963 34,111,527
Advances to disposed subsidiaries BT HEHBAR
2B - 169,217,461
Cash and bank balances HeRRTER 36,643,478 28,850,116
Trade and bills payables BN E SRR RRIE - (7,994,309)
Other payables and accruals H A eI IB R EFH B A (38,247,365)  (199,495,477)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings S RBITER - (87,660,732)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 34 - (12,661,256)
Non-controlling interests JEIERR RS - (71,818,526)
(1,550,329) 247,770,506
Consideration RE 1,000,008 372,184,088
Gain on net assets/liabilities disposed HeEREE ABZHE 2,550,337 124,413,582
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve  fR[ (& H K B & 477,896 24,075,453
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENRBRARZFE 3,028,233 148,489,035
The consideration is satisfied by: REZzZMAAA :
Cash He 1,000,008 189,984,088
A deferred consideration (note 27)* BRIERE (HiF27) * - 184,000,000
Less: transaction costs B RBHA - (1,800,000)

1,000,008 372,184,088
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39.
(continued)

* HK$184,000,000 of the aggregate consideration for @
the disposal of the 53% interest in Zhejiang Sealand in
2011 as detailed in note 12 to the financial statements
has been settled during the year ended 31 December
2012 (“Deferred Consideration”). All the issued and
paid-up share capital of Polyson and Asia Capital
Financial Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hong Kong Yuanhe International Trade Group
Limited, one of the purchasers, who owns 21% of
the total equity interest in Zhejiang Sealand, were
pledged as securities to the Company for the Deferred
Consideration. Such outstanding consideration was
included in other receivables as at 31 December 2011.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

HENB AT (&

M mERM 12ty — T ——
FHEMNTEH3%ER 2 AR
{€ 7 2184,000,000% JT ([3E fT
RE]) EREBE-T——F+=
R=+—BHILFEER ° Polyson
RENERFBEEEBBRA A
(BEBRNERZESE@MERA
RI(BAZ— BBENILEHE
A AR 221%) 22 EH B
AR 2E2PEBEITRARKRA
WERTFARAMEAERTEREZ
B ZAEEREEHAZE
——&+-A=t—HZHME
IRARFRAT ©

HEMBARZRERREFER

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: ANFEITWT -
2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%
HKS HK$
BT BT
Cash consideration RERE (FBRRZHA)

(net of transaction costs) 1,000,008 188,184,088
Cash and bank balances disposed of 2% 74 MKIBTTET (36,643,478)  (28,850,116)
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and HEMBARIZEE R

cash equivalents in respect REFERA S

of the disposal of subsidiaries Gne) F5:E (35,643,470) 159,333,972

40. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group,
as further explained in notes 29 and 33(a)(iii) to the
financial statements.

Certain of the Group’s cash and cash equivalent balances
are not freely convertible into Hong Kong dollars (note 29).
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OPERATING LEASE 41.

ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group and the Company leases its office premises

and director's apartment under non-cancellable

operating lease arrangements with terms of one year.

At 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

REMENRH

EREBA

REBREARARENAIRHLE
MOZHERERAEDERES
oE - HERH—F-

R-ZE——F+-_fF=+—8" 1
BT AT F R 81 2 T o] BUSE 48
EHAN NEBRAARFEEBEZ
HHREENHESRB|EHINOT -

Group Company
REME b N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —FT——%F ZEB--fF —T——F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —&R 1,052,608 516,000 552,000 516,000
COMMITMENTS 42. EiE

In addition to the operating lease commitments in note
41 above, the Group had the following commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

B b XM R4 2 SR & MR KR RS
REBRHRERAE AT AL :

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —E——f
HKS HK$
B BT

Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAVE M R B

Acquisition of a property W B 4 2 4,070,000 =
Establishment of a joint venture (note) B & & NT] (HTEE) 50,000,000 48,780,488
54,070,000 48,780,488
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42.

43.

Avic
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COMMITMENTS (continued)

Note:

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with AVIC International, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, and Chengdu Aircraft
Industry (Group) Corporation Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”), for the
establishment of a joint venture to engage in the research and
development, design and manufacture of parts and components
for commercial aircraft, and provision of related technical
services. According to the JV Agreement, the total registered
capital of the joint venture is RMB100 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$125 million), of which 40%, 15% and 45%
respectively, will be contributed by Sino-Aviation Investments,
AVIC International and Chengdu Aircraft. The JV Agreement is
conditional upon (i) the internal approval obtained by each of
the three parties; and (ii) the approval from the relevant PRC
authorities. As at 31 December 2012, the JV Agreement has
not become effective as the conditions stated above have not
been fulfilled.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities

42.

43.

i (F

Hat

RZZEERF—ANAB ARRIZE2E
Bff /& 2 &]Sino-Aviation InvestmentsE2 7N
ANAEl 2 E EIRER P MBI R A AR T
¥(5EH) BREEAA ([HREBARHE])
A EEm®E ([EEHE]) AR —
KAENA - HEEARET 2
B RE R DA R IR AR R AR
%o REEEHE &8 AR BT M
& 78 &100,000,0007T A R# (FBE R4
125,000,000/ 7T) - E AiSino-Aviation
Investments + A fift B B Tz A #D R4 16 o5
BlEEA0% * 15% K%45% - & & H#EEA
FATRGERBESSER - BFEO=F
EEBEBAMAE RNESEBEA+TE
WEZHE BE-_Z——F+-A=
+—H - AR RER - Bt
ZA LR AR ER

MBRER
R - R R B RRE (E

not provided for in the financial statements were as BEZZABBENT
follows:
Group
TEE
2012 2011
=F-=F =T %
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Guarantees given to banks in connection with Ft—RKMB AR ZE%E
facilities granted to companies controlled by 7 #WAFT#EH] 2 A T
acquaintances of a director of a subsidiary BEZEEmmIRT
M2 ER 25,000,000 28,170,732

As at 31 December 2012, the banking facilities granted
to the companies controlled by acquaintances of a
director of a subsidiary subject to guarantees given
to banks by the Group were utilised to the extent of
HK$15,000,000 (2011: HK$28,170,732).

RZE—=—F+=ZRAR=+—8"
H—EWNBRRIZEETZAAM
EHl 2 AEIEBANEE M RITIE
HERMESZRITEEEHA
15,000,000% T (= & — —
28,170,732/ 7T) °
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. BEEE XS
(@) In addition to the transactions described (a) MV BHERBBEMILZR S
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group Oh - REBRF ARG HESTIA
had the following material transactions with TEREBARS
related parties during the year:
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F
Notes HKS HK$
HiF BT BT
Minimum lease payments under BIE T REFEE
an operating lease on land and RARBRRE 2
building paid to a shareholder AW (i) - (12,000)
Net loss from Project EC120 REEC120IE B 2 %18 (ii) - (1,206,530)
Interest income on a loan to Bz NG )
a related company EFZZHNEWA (i) 1,160,803 1,368,110
Interest income on loans to A EHEHE A Rl A
a jointly-controlled entity S oA ISV 9N (iv) - 1,763,162
Associates: /NI
Interest income on convertible ML RN RIEITZ AR
bonds issued by an associate R &2 7 BIA (v) 849,692 155,833
Interest income on loans to EEANEIE =L
associates BRI BHA (vi) 2,277,351 1,626,198
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a) (continued)

Notes:

(i) In the prior year, the Company leased from
AVIC International (HK) Group its property at a
monthly rental of HK$12,000 (inclusive of rates
and management fees) until 31 January 2011.
The rental was determined with reference to

open market rentals.

(ii) In the prior year, the balance represented
the Group’s share of 80% of net loss of
AVIC International from the operations of
Project EC120. Starting from 2012, indirect
expenses allocated by AVIC
to Project EC120, if any, should not exceed
AVIC International’s share of income, net of
direct costs and expenses, as agreed by AVIC
International. Further details are set out in note
22 to the financial statements.

(iii) Details of the loan to a related company are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.

(iv) In the prior year, the interest income arose
from the loans of HK$23,529,412 which were
unsecured, bore interest at 5.56% per annum
and were settled during that year.

(v) The interest income represented interest income
on convertible bonds issued by CEIH. Details of
the convertible bonds are set out in note 23(b)
to the financial statements.

(vi) Details of the loans to associates are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.

(b) Other transactions with related parties:

(i) During the year, the Group subscribed for
343,865,000 new shares issued by CEIH
at par of HK$0.2 per share pursuant to
an open offer for a total consideration,
before expense, of HK$68,773,000.

0\
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44. BBMAEXRZ (&

(a)

(%)
Biat

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEFE - AQR @ P
B (B8 SBERA
AEEEYE  BAES
£12,000/8 7T (B15 %= i
LRERE) BEE_T—
—&F—HA=+—H1t-H
& N2ELMMEHSE
= o

BREFE  ZEBTIANE
& 5k B L BIBR FAEC 12078
B EEBMEEZFEIE
B 915 280% o &b i
BERrzEE B2 —
ZFEHE . AR DS
ZEECI120BEE 2% EH
(BEE) Tl BEH Elg
ZWA CRETE BEEK A
EEX)  #E—THBEH
REFTS SRR MI7E22 -

AEEARRENERZ
FHBERR Y REME
26 °

BAFE - ZHMBWAT
JR B23,529,4125 JT HY
BER  ZERAEER -
REF K5 5652 E
REZFEE -

Z A BIRA T BRE
FE&TT2 PR AR &S5 2 F)
BN THREES 2
ERCE NP T E
23(b) °

FEE R BIRENER
FHERR B RRM T
21

SRR ET RS

(i)

FARN AEERBE—
HARBEERZNE
R {8 568,773,000/
T(RMBER K
EHEFRO2E TR
EBHPEHREETZ
343,865,0000% #HA% {7
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

In the prior year, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement
with Sino Gas Finance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEIH, to dispose of
47.91% interest of Fidelity Group and
the shareholder’s loan due and owing to
the Group by Fidelity Finance to Sin Gas
Finance. The disposal was completed on 6
March 2012. Further details are disclosed
in note 13(a) to the financial statements.

In the prior year, the Group converted
certain convertible bonds issued by CEIH
into 137,500,000 ordinary shares of
CEIH at the conversion price of HK$0.2
per share at the maturity date of those
convertible bonds.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Details of the Group’s loans to associates
as at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Details of terms of the convertible bonds
issued by an associate are disclosed in
note 23(b) to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s loan to a related
company as at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Details of the amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
are disclosed in note 30 to the financial

statements.

44. BABAR S (&

(b)

(&

(ii)

(iii)

BEFE - ASEHEAF
BIIRIE 2 2 BB AR
HFOBRBEM BRI L — 10
ERGEERE - [T
MREE IS H S E
B 247 91%#Em K15
WENE FET RARAS AR S
BoRRER - HER
R-E——F=AXH
TERK o E—HEHEER
RS IRERMIEE13@)

BEFE AEELE
ETHaFRARKEET
2RI R ESFEZA
BRESZ BB
BRO2BTLzER(E
B0 5137,500,000%
BRI L EAR o

BARRR T 2 RIBEREER

—~
=

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RMEBRR NEE
M ERNRIRENE
R FBRYBHRE
BEE2 138 5E ©

RN Al !
BES ZIEKFRBR
B 7% =R % B 5E23(b) 1%

==
B ©

REERHE KRR
FEARIRENER
L EEIE R B S R B
FE26H R -

BN—XMBRAZ
FEBRBRRZFER
FA TS HRAR M RE 30 ER -
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. BEE RS (&)
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d) ANEBEREEEIEAR ZR
the Group:
2012 2011
—EB-—-F —T——%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits HHEEEF 7,226,980 15,558,736
Post-employment benefits EIE%ER 383,959 383,959
Total compensation paid to key STNEEEEAS
management personnel 2 RN 4R RE 7,610,939 15,942,695

Avic
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Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 45. €T EDE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of MR ERR SHeRmITAKEEAE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting LU
period are as follows:
Group
2012
—E-——F
Financial assets
MBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss - held Loans and financial
for trading  receivables assets Total
ATEIEN
HBEE - EXR AHEHEN
HIFEE FEWR S BBEE At
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B B #E B
Available-for-sale investments AL ENRE - - 193,975,451 193,975,451
Trade and bills receivables ENE SRR ERE - 13,815,192 - 13,815,192
Loan to an associate RH & A AR AR E - 12,250,000 - 12,250,000
Loan to a related company RBERRRENER - 18,750,000 - 18,750,000
Financial assets included in FTABNATR - ke
prepayments, deposits and Rt R AR R0
other receivables S EE - 26,996,973 - 26,996,973
Derivative financial instrument TESRIA 9,014,631 - - 9,014,631
Pledged time deposits EERESRER - 6,625,000 - 6,625,000
Cash and cash equivalents BebkBeEE - 1,024,789,556 - 1,024,789,556
9,014,631 1,103,226,721 193,975,451 1,306,216,803
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 45. ¢RI ADE (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIERR SHEERMITAKREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting R : (48
period are as follows: (continued)
Group (continued)
NEE (&)
2012 (continued)
—E-—F (&)
Financial liabilities
BkEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R AR
MEKaE
HK$
B
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary &Rt —F M BA T2 3R T 320,317
Trade and bills payables ERESEFREE 43,823,954
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAEAMEMA IR ERTE RN
and accruals B aE 17,666,439
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFERITER 14,625,000
76,435,710
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

45. ST ESHE (

Zz)

RBEEHR SEeRTAKEE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting IR : (B
period are as follows: (continued)
Group (continued)
rEE ()
2011
—B——F
Financial assets
Mg EE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables  financial assets Total
BHR A E R
e AR SR WBEE G
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Available-for-sale investments A ENIRE - 534,904,646 534,904,646
Trade and bills receivables YR ZEFRRE 10,965,384 - 10,965,384
Loans to associates I A BRI ER 53,243,122 - 53,243,122
Loan to a related company REDRIRENER 18,292,683 = 18,292,683
Financial assets included in SARNTIE - Bk
prepayments, deposits and Hit KRR
other receivables BB E 303,617,849 = 303,617,849
Time deposit THER 164,634,146 = 164,634,146
Pledged time deposits BIEETESHER 365,854 = 365,854
Cash and cash equivalents RBehReEE 631,308,018 = 631,308,018
1,182,427,056 534,904,646  1,717,331,702
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

45. €RTHEHYHE (&)

mr (&)

RBEHR SERTAREE

rEE (&)
2011 (continued)
—E——F (&)
Financial liabilities
BkEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TRE SR AT R
HE % E &
HK$
BT
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary &Rt — KM BA B2 JEE AR 94,895
Trade and bills payables ENE SRR REE 24,600,267
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAEMEMAFIERERTE RN
and accruals HBEE 167,678,922
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBRITER 37,073,171
229,447,255




AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZETRERZER (F8) FRAT
Annual Report 2012

—E-_FER

Notes to Financial Statements 81 %3 3R M 5%

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 45. €T ES R (&)
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RERR SHEeMITAKEEAE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T ()

period are as follows: (continued)

Company
b N/NE|
Financial assets
MBEE
2012 2011
-8-cf “2-f
Available- Available-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and financial Loans and financial
receivables asset Total receivables asset Total
£V e ERR AfIHE
FEUsE  HHBEE CH BUFE  WOUKAE fif
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
V-7 V-7 V-7 V-5 V-7 V-7
Available-for-sale investment A HEHLE - 2,680,300 2,680,300 - 2680300 2,680,300
Loans to an associate REEAFRENER - - - 41,048,000 - 41,048,000
Financial assets included in STAEfIE -
prepayments, deposits and Re REMENR
other receivables RRRBREE 10,115,855 - 10,115,855 215,875,504 - 215,875,504
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEE 385,734,911 - 385734911 179,692,013 - 179,692,013

395,850,766 2,680,300 398,531,066 436,615,517 2,680,300 439,295,817

Financial liability

g 3=
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBHERAIENGTEEE
2012 2011
=B-=F —_T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities included in P AE Ath FEAS FRIE K B AT
other payables and accruals ERMNBBaE 6,396,472 14,957,330
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 46. AT ERAFESRFE
HIERARCHY
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's AEBRAAF ST EZREE
and the Company’s financial instruments are as follows: RAFERHIOT
Group
rEH
Carrying amounts Fair values
BEE AYE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —E——f —E-ZF “2—-F
HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets HHEE
Available-for-sale investments AR ENERE 193,975,451 534,904,646 193,975,451 534,904,646
Trade and bills receivables ERE ST RER 13,815,192 10,965,384 13,815,192 10,965,384
Loans to associates RE SR RIRENER 12,250,000 53,243,122 12,250,000 53,243,122
Loan to a related company REEARRENER 18,750,000 18,292,683 18,750,000 18,292,683
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERZUE - 4 REM
deposits and other receivables TR B EE 26,996,973 303,617,849 26,996,973 303,617,849
Derivative financial instrument fTEERMIA 9,014,631 - 9,014,631 -
Time deposit EHER - 164,634,146 - 164,634,146
Pledged time deposits BERAEHER 6,625,000 365,854 6,625,000 365,854
Cash and cash equivalents EeRREEE 1,024,789,556 631,308,018 1,024,789,556 631,308,018

1,306,216,803  1,717,331,702  1,306,216,803  1,717,331,702

Financial liabilities HEEE
Due to a non-controlling shareholder ~ ER—ZRMERFZ

of a subsidiary FIERRR 320,317 94,895 320,317 94,895
Trade and bills payables ENESRETRER 43,823,954 24,600,267 43,823,954 24,600,267
Financial liabilities included in STARMERFER

other payables and accruals B ERNABER 17,666,439 167,678,922 17,666,439 167,678,922
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBTER 14,625,000 37,073,171 14,625,000 37,073,171

76,435,710 229,447,255 76,435,710 229,447,255
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

46.

ATVERATESRHE
(&
AEBRARFRERMITAZ REE
RAFEHFINNT : (&)

(continued)
Company
b /N
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AVE
2012 2011 2012 2011
~E-Cf It —2-Cf EF
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT AT BT
Financial assets HBEE
Available-for-sale investments AftHERNRE 2,680,300 2,680,300 2,680,300 2,680,300
Loans to an associate S A RRENER - 41,048,000 = 41,048,000
Financial assets included in prepayments, S AEMZIE - H4 K
deposits and other receivables E NGRS REBEE 10,115,855 215,875,504 10,115,855 215,875,504
Cash and cash equivalents RHeMBeEE 385,734,911 179,692,013 385,734,911 179,692,013
398,531,066 439,295,817 398,531,066 439,295,817
Financial liability BHAE
Financial liabilities included in STARMERTIER
other payables and accruals EtERNGBARE 6,396,472 14,957,330 6,396,472 14,957,330
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are PHEERBBECAFETASR
included in the amount at which the instrument could (MIERBHBEBEE) RHTEFTR
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing BERRXZPHAEHMTIAZRIER -
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. REFTAFER  gFATAR

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, loans to
associates, a loan to a related company, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
a time deposit, pledged time deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, trade and bills payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

RE® :

KB ZEAERE  MEE QT
REMWER  ABAEQRARHNE
R RTABRNRE  ZeREME
WERNMBEE EHEFEHR B
BERERER R kBAEeFE -
BN —RMBAR ZIFEBRERZ
RIE - BRNEIERALERE  FA
HiENRAEREFERANTHKA
BERGFERITERZAFEEELE
BZREERES  TERHR%ZE

TEREHAZIE -
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instrument have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation was
based on the expected future cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:
Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

46.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 46. AT ERAFEELRHE
HIERARCHY (continued) (4&
Assets measured at fair value:
DATEFEZEE
Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E-R E=R a5t
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2012 N-B-——F
+=A=+—H
Available-for-sale investments: At ERIIRE
Equity investments BRAKE 144,518,380 - - 144,518,380
Debt investments BRIEE 5,070,300 44,386,771 - 49,457,071
Derivative financial instrument ~ #T44$ BT A - 9,014,631 - 9,014,631
149,588,680 53,401,402 - 202,990,082
As at 31 December 2011 RoE——f&
+=A=t-~H

Available-for-sale investments: A ftHERIRA

Equity investments AR E 529,892,638 - - 529,892,638
Debt investments BHEE 5,012,008 = = 5,012,008
534,904,646 = - 534,904,646
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

AT ERBZEE : ()

46. P ERAFEEARFHE

(4&)

Company
b NN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 -8 Z=R At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2012 N-B-——F
+=-B=+-8
Available-for-sale investment; At ERIRE
Debt investments BRIRE 2,680,300 - - 2,680,300
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——F
t=A=t-AH
Available-for-sale investment: AHERRE
Debt investments BERIRE 2,680,300 = = 2,680,300

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2011: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured

at fair value as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

FRF-RARF-_RzEALEE
BAFEAE  TEEAXELSE
=R (=FE——F E)-

R-F-——FR-F——F1T-5
S+—8 AEBLEEARAT
EFfEZHMBARE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
In view of the fact that the Group tries to match its
assets and liabilities with the same currency, the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

47.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged time
deposits, available-for-sale investments, deposits and
other receivables, and loans to related parties arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk through the granting
of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans. The Group’s policy is to minimise borrowings.

47.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BIREAKRETEEERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (4&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mENME RS ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company's RIERR NEBEREFTAE
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, KRR Rz BB &R HER
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as N
follows:
Group
AEHE
2012
—E--F
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=EALEL
SN
REXE HR=fEA T=f@A G
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT
Due to a non-controlling A —KHB QA
shareholder of a subsidiary IR 320,317 - - 320,317
Trade and bills payables ENE SERRER - 39,434,825 4,389,129 43,823,954
Other payables and accruals Hpth eI K
B ER - 17,666,439 - 17,666,439
Interest-bearing bank SERTER
borrowings - 4,159,338 11,185,375 15,344,713
Guarantees given to banks HRITHET—K

for banking facilities granted B ARIZES

to companies controlled by ZANFER 2 R A

acquaintances of a director ZBIEE (EBA

of a subsidiary which were 2 En) M7

utilised EH 2 1R 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000

15,320,317 61,260,602 15,574,504 92,155,423
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47.

&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,

M.Mﬁ@@%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%

(#&

REBEER (&)

based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as T (&)

follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

RBEHR AREERDFTHE

REBRNRZ P BB ERDHE R

E® (&)
2011
—E——F
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=E A
RERE  PR=MEA +=fEA B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Due to a non-controlling ER—RNBAA
shareholder of a subsidiary IR R 94,895 - - 94,895
Trade and bills payables EREBEIETRER - 17,964,368 6,635,899 24,600,267
Other payables and accruals Hip B FER
E:tER - 128,971,521 38,707,401 167,678,922
Interest-bearing bank STRBITER
borrowings - 15,391,457 23,377,037 38,768,494
Guarantees given to banks HBITHT K
for banking facilities granted MEARCES
to companies controlled by ZRANFTES 2 A E
acquaintances of a director ZBIEE (EBA
of a subsidiary which were ZE1n) miReT
utilised fEH 2 1R 28,170,732 - - 28,170,732
28,265,627 162,327,346 68,720,337 259,313,310
Company
AATE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
On demand On demand
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables and accruals H R RIE R ERTE A 6,396,472 14,957,330
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of financial
instruments decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed equity investment classified as available-for-sale
investment (note 23) as at 31 December 2012. The listed
equity investments are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

47.

MEREEEEREE
(&

% 18 /R

B& 15 2\ B B () % 32 ¥ SOK T K (R Bl
BHEEEIMESRIAATE
RERERE - RZE—Z—F+=H
=+—HB ' AEEERZSBERAHE
HENRE (Hit23) 2 ETRARE
BREACRERR - EWRAR
BTRANEER G LT - Wik
HEHRABMEME -

FAKEAREHRR 5 AW
TIEHX B AMZREREBRE
RERZ&RREERHBDT

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

t+=B=+-H &/ t-A=1t—*H =/ &

2012 2012 2011 2011

“B--§ —BE--§f —T——% ZT——F

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index &% — (B4 1EE 22,657 22,660/18,186 18,434 24,469/16,170
Shenzhen - A share Index R — ARRFEER 920  1,057/757 1,042 1,378/1,031
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BB EREEBERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#&
(continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RERR (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TREVNNRAREH KR FEFAE EAM
every 1% change in the fair values of the listed equity ARREHEEIE B S
investment and the underlying equity investment of the BEET ERETRAKE RIT
derivative financial instrument, with all other variables ST AEZHEBARAKRE ZRE
held constant and before any impact on tax, based B - HEQAFESE I %A B
on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting E o
period.
Increase/
(decrease)
in percentage
of fair value
of listed
equity
investment/ Carrying Increase/
underlying amount of (decrease) Increase/
equity financial in profit (decrease)
investment instruments before tax in equity*
Nl i) @
BE /6
BRAEZE R
ATEEDH £RMIA BADRA #n,/
#m,/ (Rd) SREME EmORD) (BD) *
% HK$ HK$ HK$
% BT AT BT
2012 —E-——F
Investment listed in: RUATHE Efz
®E
Shenzhen - available-for-sale FH — At E 1 144,518,380 - 1,083,888
(1) - (1,083,888)
Unlisted investment at fair value: 3f FTRE -
BAYE
Derivative financial asset PTEMBEE 1 9,014,631 202,056 =
(1) (202,056) =
2011 —E——F
Investment listed in: RUATHRL ETh 2
wE -
Shenzhen - available-for-sale Y — A e 1 529,892,638 - 3,974,195
(1) - (3,974,195)
* Excluding retained profits * TR TR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent. Management considers a
gearing ratio of not more than 40% as reasonable. The

47.
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KEER - EEER R THEBI0%
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gearing ratios as at the ends of the reporting periods HRCERBELEEROT
were as follows:
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s BIRTTER 14,625,000 37,073,171
Equity attributable to equity UNGIL: $3 SPEDN ey 3
holders of the parent 1,952,616,979 2,150,907,090

1% 2%

Gearing ratio

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 48. BIfsiRk 2 Ht

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2013.
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TREIAKENEERLBMRFE XS
REE  BENMFERESHE - e
AEBERFEZEAMEEMB®REK - I
BEEY/EHHE (WER) AEEW Ik
RBRZBTEHRR 2 BRI -

The table set out below summarises the results and the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the Group’s published
consolidated financial statements of the respective years and
restated/reclassified as appropriate. This summary is not part of

186

the audited financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-—A=t-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
B —E——% ZZ-TF ZTTNF ZTINF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
Revenue Was 87,328 = 654 1,718 4,222
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX MBLATER  (EE) 422,613 432,014 25,730 27,634 (1,068)
Income tax expense RS (61,618)  (111,191) (370) (8,313) (648)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BEREERY
FROM CONTINUING AERF,/(FE)
OPERATIONS 360,995 320,823 25,360 19,321 (1,716)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILEEEK
Profit for the year from a BRIFEEEK Y
discontinued operation AERH - 152,766 18,320 5,385 11,974
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERF 360,995 473,589 43,680 24,706 10,258
Attributable to: THALFERN :
Equity holders of the parent NEEREEA 359,651 467,519 36,062 23,772 1,852
Non-controlling interests Fiiniligr ey 1,344 6,070 7,618 934 8,406
360,995 473,589 43,680 24,706 10,258
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE 868K
NON-CONTROLLING R
INTERESTS
Total assets BERE 2,086,453 2,551,850 4,071,565 1,198,611 1,152,306
Total liabilities BfELE (128,254)  (396,770)  (637,841)  (177,728)  (164,243)
Non-controlling interests I = (5,582) (4,173) (71,646) (65,428) (69,005)
1,952,617 2,150,907 3,362,078 955,455 919,058
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